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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
1 7% did 22

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THILAEA

2016 2015 Change
B-RE —T-h%E o
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 %
TER TET ERid
Fee and commission income ERRA2KA
— brokerage -1 211,132 436,421 -51.6%
— corporate finance —EHE 157,105 129,724 21.1%
— asset management - EEER 13,756 34,584 -60.2%
Income from loans and financing ERRREKA 633,137 512,819 23.5%
Gain from financial products, THED - HmkEEKE 195,771 102,761 90.5%
market making and investments
Revenue Woas 1,210,901 216,309 -04%
Profit for the period HAR 4 A 541,180 602,564 -10.2%
Profit attributable to ordinary ARAIEBRRIERSE ARE RN 536,704 600,537 -10.6%
equity holders of the Company
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)* SREAREN (B> 7.8l 8.84 -11.7%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)* SREERN (GBI )* 773 8.69 -11.0%
Dividend per share (HK cents)* TR S GBI 3.0 35 -143%
Equity per ordinary share (HK$)* (Note) ~ FF X Z @R E (B )* (M) I.I5 1.08 6.5%

Note:

as adjusted for the completion of bonus issue in July 2015

Based on 6,881,605,013 shares (30 June 2015: 6,832,541,705 shares) as at 30 June 2016,
being 6,950,273,413 shares issued and fully paid less 68,668,400 shares held under the
Company's share award scheme (30 June 2015: 6,929,637,105 shares issued and fully paid
less 97,095,400 shares held under the Company's share award scheme).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULT AND OVERVIEW

We are pleased to report to our shareholders that the Group achieved a profit after tax of
HK$541.2 million (2015: HK$602.6 million) for the period ended 30 June 2016, representing a
decrease of 10.2% as compared to the corresponding period of 2015. During the period under
review, the Group's corporate finance activities, loans and financing activities, financial products
activities and market making activities increased significantly, resulting in the increases of the

corresponding income by 21.1%, 23.5%, 974.8% and 234.5% respectively.

The Board of the Company has recommended a payment of interim dividend of HK$0.03 per
share for the period ended 30 June 2016.

MARKET REVIEW

Macro environment

In the first half of 2016, the global economy continued to grow slowly. The US economy has
been recovering as can been seen in the improving labour market in the US. The US Federal
Reserve took a prudent view on the pace of the economic growth and did not propose
any interest rate hike in the first half of 2016. In Europe, the pace of economic growth
remained slow. The Brexit Referendum created uncertainties in Europe. Though the result of
the referendum supported UK's exit, it did not cause material fluctuations in the market. In
China, the government was still struggling with the slowdown in economic growth. Economic
restructuring was underway with slowdown in productions, investments and consumptions.
The growth momentum of the Hong Kong economy was hindered by the weakness in
consumptions and the downward pressure on asset prices. Hong Kong dollar interest rates
remained at a low level, with US dollar interest rate hikes deferred to the end of this year
or early next year. With the expectation of US interest rate hikes, the slowdown of China
economic growth and the decrease of the foreign currency reserve in China, RMB continued to

depreciate against the US dollar.

Policy issues

Since the crash of the A share market in the middle of last year, the Chinese government
introduced a number of measures to deleverage the market and strengthen its supervision.
Under the high volatility in the stock market, regulatory supervision was tightened. The
introduction of the circuit breaking mechanism in the China stock market early this year caused
the market further collapse and resulted in the suspension of the mechanism after its launching
for 4 days. A number of planned market opening initiatives, such as the Shenzhen-Hong Kong

Stock Connect Program, have been deferred.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1 E Wl e 5 5

Markets

Affected by the circuit breaking mechanism incident in the China stock market early this year,
the Brexit Referendum and the outflow of liquidity to US dollar markets, the Hong Kong
stock market moved further downwards from the closing level of 2015. The Hang Seng Index
dropped to 20,794 by the end of June 2016, a decrease of 20.8% as compared to the end of
June 2015 and a decrease of 5.1% as compared to the end of December 2015. The average
daily tumover of the Hong Kong stock market was also affected by poor market sentiments
where investors were reluctant to participate. The average daily turnover of the Hong Kong
stock market dropped to HK$67.5 billion, a decrease of 46.1% when compared with HK$125.3
billion for the same period last year. Poor market sentiments also affected the IPO market in
Hong Kong and there were only 40 newly listed companies in the first half of 2016, a decrease

of 21.6% when compared with 51 newly listed companies for the same period last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's businesses include brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and
financing as well as financial products, market making and investments. During the first half of
2016, the performance of the Group was affected by the frustrating market conditions and the
exceptionally high comparative base figures of the same period last year, particularly on the
brokerage and asset management businesses of the Group. However, the Group still achieved
outstanding growth in loans and financing, corporate finance, market making and financial
products businesses. The revenue of the Group decreased by 0.4% to HK$1,210.9 million (2015:
HK$1,216.3 million) for the period ended 30 June 2016. A breakdown of the revenue is listed

below:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B o S 3

For the period ended 30 June

BEAAZTHLEH

2016 2015
ZB-AE —T-h%F
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FET % THET %

Fee and commission income ERRA2KA

~ brokerage -1 211,132 17.4 436421 359

— corporate finance —ERE 157,105 13.0 129,724 10.7

— asset management - BEER 13,756 Il 34,584 28
Income from loans and financing ERRBERA 633,137 52.3 512,819 422
Gain on financial products, market SREM - #HREEKR 195,771 16.2 102,761 84

making and investments
Revenue Woss 1,210,901 100.0 1216309 100.0
Brokerage FES)

Affected by the drastic decrease in market tumover, the keen competition from peers and the RETHEZHERERD  RESNHEENE

robust market performance in the first half of last year before the market crash, the revenue FEAMEHBRABYINTERESREY

generated from the brokerage business decreased by 51.6% to HK$21 1.1 million for the period £ HE_Z-R"FAA=THILLHR &%

ended 30 June 2016 (2015: HK$436.4 million) The breakdown of the revenue of the brokerage %S E £ MM R P SI6%ZE2 LI B E BT

business is set out below: (ZE—RF :4364BERTT) « LIEEBHI
HAREFIWT

For the period ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEM

2016 2015
—E-XE TR
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

TER % BT %

Securities Fepa 160,336 76.0 392,198 899
Futures and options g R HRE 27,374 13.0 22,493 5.1
Handling income FEBWA 16,951 8.0 16,720 38
Leveraged foreign exchange EVEIN 1,355 0.6 1,192 03
Insurance Rk 5116 24 3818 09
211,132 100.0 436,42 1000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1 E Wl e 5 5

Although brokerage income is directly affected by the level of market activities, we consider
that the expansion of client base is crucial to the success of business. Investment conferences
were regularly organized to expand our clientele and we successfully recruited over 6,300 new
clients for the period ended 30 June 2016. A reliable and efficient online trading platform is
crucial to the expansion of our business, especially for retail clients. During the period under
review, 78% of the brokerage commission was generated from our online trading system and

70% of the brokerage commission was from individual investors.

The volatility of the stock market encouraged higher turnover in futures and options during
the period ended 30 June 2016. The brokerage income from futures and options increased by
21.7% to HK$27.4 million (2015: HK$22.5 million) for the period ended 30 June 2016. The
income from leveraged foreign exchange business was HK$1.4 million (2015: HK$1.2 million)
for the period ended 30 June 2016, representing an increase of 13.7% as compared to the

same period last year.

We are committed to develop insurance brokerage services for our clients through co-
operating with other experienced market participants. The income from insurance brokerage
increased by 34.0% to HK$5.1 million (2015: HK$3.8 million) for the period ended 30 June
2016.

Handling income also slightly increased by 1.4% to HK$17.0 million (2015: HK$16.7 million) for
the period ended 30 June 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate Finance
Our corporate finance business covers debt capital markets, equity capital markets and
consultancy and financial advisory services. A breakdown of the revenue for corporate finance

business is set out below:

B E a5 T

h¥mE
IANEEREXE S LEHELATS KR
BAMGSARBERRBERARE - LERE
EBWaE BRI T

For the period ended 30 June

BZAA=tRHLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —hE
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THT % TR %
Placing, underwriting and
sub-underwriting commission BLE - AR AEAE
— Debt securities —EE 66,220 422 34312 265
— Equity securities —RAE S 43,958 28.0 58,809 453
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income  EfE X B E B 46,927 29.8 36,603 282
157,105 100.0 129,724 100.0

We endeavor to provide a range of high-quality advisory services on corporate transactions as
well as debt and equity capital markets service to Hong Kong, China and international clients.
Our corporate finance advisory services include acting as sponsor in the application for the
listing of securities on the Main Board and the GEM in Hong Kong and provision of corporate
finance and compliance advisory services. Our debt and equity capital market services provide
a variety of distribution channels to our customers including underwriting and placements in the

primary and secondary markets.

The equity capital market activities in Hong Kong were very weak during the period ended
30 June 2016. There were only 40 newly listed companies during the period under review, a
decrease 21.6% when compared with the 51 newly listed companies during the same period
last year. Funds raised through IPOs for the period ended 30 June 2016 was HK$43.6 billion, a
decrease of 66.3% when compared with HK$129.5 billion for the same period last year. Total
funds raised in the Hong Kong equity capital market was only HK$140.7 billion, a decrease of

80.2% when compared with HK$71 1.7 billion for the same period last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1 E Wl e 5 5

During the period ended 30 June 2016, we were the sponsor for | company, bookrunner for 5
companies and sub-underwriter for | company in the primary market. In the secondary market,
we acted as placing agent for 5 placing exercises. We assisted corporates to raise a total of
more than HK$26.4 billion and HK$965.6 million respectively in the primary and secondary
markets in Hong Kong.

During the period under review, corporate finance advisory activities, especially merger and
acquisition activities, were very active. We were appointed as financial advisor for |2 financial

advisory projects.

As a result, the income generated from consultancy and financial advisory services significantly
increased by 28.2% to HK$46.9 million (2015: HK$36.6 million) for the period ended 30 June
2016 while the income generated from equity capital markets decreased by 25.3% to HK$44.0
million (2015: HK$58.8 million) for the period ended 30 June 2016.

In the first half of 2016, the Hong Kong debt capital market activities were very active despite
the economic downturn in mainland China and the decrease in demand in RMB debt issues
due to the interest rate cuts in mainland China. We participated in |6 debt issue exercises in
Hong Kong, assisting corporates to raise HK$17.7 billion through the Hong Kong debt capital
market. The income from debt capital markets increased by 93.0% to HK$66.2 million (2015:
HK$34.3 million) for the period ended 30 June 2016.

Asset Management

We provide a series of asset management services including portfolio management, investment
advice and transaction execution to individual clients, private and public funds. Income from
asset management business decreased by 60.2% to HK$13.8 million (2015: HK$34.6 million)
for the period ended 30 June 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loans and Financing

Loans and financing has been our growth driver since the listing of the Group in 2010. The
income from loans and financing business increased by 23.5% to HK$633.1 million (2015:
HK$512.8 million) for the period ended 30 June 2016. A breakdown of the revenue of loans

and financing is set out below:

B E a5 T

EXKME
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For the period ended 30 June

BZAA=tRHLEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER % FET %
Margin loans FREXK 553,877 87.5 438,147 854
Term loans EHER 27,347 43 17,205 34
Securities borrowing and lending BHEE 10,616 1.7 16,698 33
IPO loans BRALHBEEER 0.0 4869 09
Reverse repurchase agreements [ 7] 21 B 15 2 0.0 — 00
Banks and others AT REAM 40,863 6.5 35,900 70
633,137 100.0 512819 1000

Due to the tightening of liquidity outflow of RMB, mainland China investors preferred to
increase borrowings in doing offshore investments. The average margin loan balance significantly
increased by 22.4% to HK$13,003.1 million (2015: HK$10,620.8 million) while the income from
margin loan business increased by 26.4% to HK$553.9 million (2015: HK$438.1 million). The

effective interest rate has also increased to reflect our current risk level.

Other than the margin loan business, the Group also engaged in term loan business to facilitate
our customers’ other financial needs, including provision of merger and acquisition financing.
The income from term loan business increased by 58.9% to HK$27.3 million (2015: HK$17.2

million).

The Group also engaged in securities borrowing and lending business. Interest income from
securities borrowing and lending decreased by 36.4% to HK$10.6 million (2015: HK$16.7
million) for the period ended 30 June 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1 E Wl e 5 5

Financial products, market making and investments

The Group holds financial assets for business development, provision of sophisticated financial
products and market making. After the market crash in the middle of last year, investors' risk
appetite decreased and they looked for risk adverse investment products with acceptable
level of leverage. The Group tailor-made financial products according to the clients’ needs and
risk appetite. As a result, the income from financial products business increased by 974.8%
to HK$62.1 million (2015: HK$5.8 million).During the period under review, market making
increased substantially. The income from market making business increased by 234.5% to
HK$107.4 million (2015: HK$ 32.1 million). The Group makes investment for the purpose
of supporting the development of its corporate finance and institutional business. During the
period under review, the income from investments were HK$26.3 million (2015: HK$64.9

million), representing a decrease of 59.5%.

RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group's total assets increased by 21.0% to HK$45,179.0 million (31 December 2015:
HK$37,329.4 million) as at 30 June 2016.

The Group's total liabilities increased by 17.5% to HK$34,890.3 million (31 December 2015:
HK$29,694.2 million) as at 30 June 2016.

The equity attributable to holders of ordinary shares increased by 4.2% to HK$7,942.8 million
(31 December 2015: HK$7,623.6 million) as at 30 June 2016. The leverage ratio (defined
as total assets less accounts payable to clients divided by total equity) was 2.90 times (31

December 2015: 2.90 times) as at 30 June 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2016, the net current assets of the Group increased by 16.0% to HK$!1,725.9
million (31 December 2015: HK$10,106.8 million). The Group's current ratio was at 1.36 times
as at 30 June 2016 (31 December 2015: 1.38 times).

In order to provide resources for the expansion of the Group's business and to strengthen its
capital structure, on 15 June 2016, the Company issued US$300 million subordinated perpetual
securities (the "Perpetual Securities”) to a total of 5 investors, namely China Industrial
Securities International Brokerage Limited, CNPC Finance (HK) Limited, China Guangfa Bank
— China Southern Fund — QDIII — 17, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and SPDB
International Investment Management Limited. The Perpetual Securities were issued at par and
the proceeds were used for general working capital. The Perpetual Securities bear an initial
distribution rate of 4.5% per annum. Distributions will be paid semi-annually in arrear and the
first distribution date will fall on 30 October 2016. The Company may, at its sole discretion,
elect to defer any distribution. The Perpetual Securities do not have any maturity date and are
only callable at the Company's discretion on 30 April 2019 or on any distribution payment date
after 30 April 2019. After 30 April 2019, the distribution rate will be reset to 3 year US swap
rate plus 8% per annum. The Perpetual Securities constitute direct, unconditional, subordinated
and unsecured obligations of the Company and are classified as equity instruments and are

recorded as equity in the condensed consolidated statement of financial position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1 E Wl e 5 5

The Group had a cash inflow of HK$882.2 million (2015: HK$1,172.3 million) for the period
ended 30 June 2016 and the Group's bank balance was HK$3,290.9 million as at 30 June 2016
(31 December 2015: HK$2,408.7 million). As at 30 June 2016, the Group had outstanding
bank borrowings of HK$10,479.3 million (31 December 2015: HK$7,855.7 million) through
facilities with a number of banks. During the period under review, the Company has successfully
renewed the Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”) of which both listed
and unlisted notes may be issued. The structured notes issued in relation to financial products
amounted to HK$3,574.1 million (31 December 2015: HK$1,929.0 million) and the notes
outstanding as at 30 June 2016 were HK$276.5 million (31 December 2015: HK$429.0 million).
The gearing ratio (defined as bank and other borrowings to total equity) was 1.05 times as at
30 June 2016 (31 December 2015: 1.09 times). Taking into account of the un-utilized facilities
from various financial institutions and significant un-issued portion of the MTN Programme,
we believe our operating cash flow is adequate to finance our recurring working capital

requirements and to meet any investment opportunities that may arise in the near future.

The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance of the capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 57IN) for its
licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new business. Al licensed corporations
within the Group complied with their respective liquid capital requirements during the period

and up to the date of this report.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt instruments

issued by the Company during the period and at the end of the period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS
Affected by the offshore and mainland China economic uncertainties, the investment market in

Hong Kong will be volatile and full of difficulties in the second half of 2016.

In the second half of 2016, the Group will target on the development of services to high net
worth individuals and the institutional investors markets. We will focus on the expansion of our
high net worth individual customer base, including entrepreneurs and senior executives. We
will adhere to the path of sustainable development, insist on maintaining our conservative risk
culture, adopt differentiated competitive strategy and steadily increase the market share of our

core businesses.

It was announced that the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program would be launched
by the end of 2016. The Group will devote its best efforts in securing all cross border business
opportunities that may arise. We will continue to expand our scope of services so as to meet
the needs of our clients and will focus on becoming the preferred comprehensive financial

services institution for our customers.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

For the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group had not made any material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies. As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not hold

any significant investments.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities during the six months ended 30 June 2016 other than as an agent

for the trustee of the Company's share award scheme.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1 E Wl e 5 5

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT, CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND
OTHER COMMITMENT
Details of the operating lease commitment, capital commitment and other commitment of the

Group are set out in note 27 of the interim financial information.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Staff is an integral part of the success of the Company. Competitive remuneration packages
are offered to employees by reference to prevailing market rate and individual merits. As at
30 June 2016, we had 357 employees in total (excluding self-employed account executives).
Salaries are reviewed on an annual basis and discretionary bonus is paid on annual basis with
reference to the Group's performance and individual performance. Share options and share
award have been granted to the directors (the “Directors”) and employees in recognition and
acknowledgement of their contribution made to or to be made to the Group. Other benefits
offered by the Group includes mandatory provident fund scheme and medical and dental

insurance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group adopted stringent risk management policies and monitoring systems to control
risk exposure associated with credit, liquidity, market, foreign exchange and IT system in all its

major operations.
Credit Risk

Loans and financing activities

The Board delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of the
Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the Chief Executive Officer, the
Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of Equity Financing Department
and the Head of Risk Management Department. The Credit Committee has further delegated
to the Equity Financing and Risk Management Department to take charge in approving credit
limit and margin limit of each client. The Equity Financing and Risk Management Department
are responsible for making settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their
respective limits. Any such excess is required to be made good according to the deficiency
report. The deficiency report will be daily monitored by the Equity Financing and Risk
Management Department. Failure to meet margin calls may result in the liquidation of the
client’s positions. The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of stocks acceptable as
margin collateral and the margin-lending ratio. The list of approved margin collateral stocks will

be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee when necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of credit risk. The
Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed credit analysis of potential loan
investment, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance

of the loan investment.

Loans and advances to customers also include IPO loans for subscription of new shares which
are normally settled within one week from the draw-down date. Forced liquidation action
would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within specific period of tolerance

after IPO allotment result announced.

For the Group's investment in debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard & Poor's
and Moody's rating or their equivalents are used by the Risk Management Department for
managing of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own assessment

through the use of intemal ratings tools.

For the Group's bank balances which we beneficially own, they are deposited in respectable
large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated

accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong.

Brokerage

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising from dealing in
securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement term of | to 3 days. The
Group allows a credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities transactions
(normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All application for the credit limit must be reviewed by
Equity Financing department and Risk Management department under delegated authority. In
addition, Equity Financing department and Risk Management Department determine whether
forced liquidation action is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on case-by-case

basis. The overdue report is regularly reviewed by the Credit Committee.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures and leveraged foreign
exchange trading. No transaction is allowed to be executed if the current position of the
customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required
margin deposit of each futures and leveraged foreign exchange contract is timely monitored by
the Risk Management Department. Margin call will be executed if there is a deficit in the margin
deposit. Forced liquidation of the client’s position will be executed if the customer fails to meet

margin calls.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial institutions which

are governed by regulators.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing-houses and other assets

which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have minimal credit risk.

Asset management and corporate finance
Accounts receivable arising from asset management and corporate finance services are from
trade counterparties with sound credit rating and/or reputation. The credit risk with these trade

counterparties are considered to be manageable.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit risk policy requires the review of individual outstanding amount at least
monthly or more regularly depending on individual circumstances or market condition.
Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of
the incurred loss at balance sheet date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individual
accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts
for that individual account. Generally, impairment allowances will be recognised when clients
failed to meet margin call requirements and clients' collateral are insufficient to cover their

outstanding loan balances.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the regulators. The Group has put in place monitoring system to ensure that it
maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its financial obligations and to comply with the relevant
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN). As a safeguard, the Group has

maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency in its operations.

The Board believes that even in periods of high market volatility, the Group's working capital is

adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Market Risk
The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which arises from long positions in equity or debt

securities, interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Price Risk
The asset quality of our margin client’s collateral will deteriorate when the market comes down
drastically. The Group's exposure to underwriting commitments will be also affected at times

of volatile market.

The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling the price
risk arising in the ordinary and usual course of business. Stress tests will be performed when

necessary.

The Group also has listed investments and unlisted investments that are subject to price risk.
The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed due diligence analysis of
potential investments, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance of the investments. These key investment decisions are also subject to approval

by the Asset Liability and Investment Committee.

Foreign Exchange Risk
The Group's foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged foreign exchange dealing
and broking business as well as the Group's transactions which are denominated in currencies

other than Hong Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking business, the Group hedges the
majority of the client positions through back-to-back transactions with external counterparties.
As the Group adopts a stringent control over its positions, we consider that our foreign

exchange risk exposure is manageable.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars ("USD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group is not exposed to material foreign
exchange risk because HKD is pegged with USD. The Group also conducts appropriate
hedging activities when it is exposed to material exchange risk in RMB. Other foreign currency
exposure is relatively minimal to its total assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange risk is daily
managed and monitored by our Finance Department. As a result, we consider that our foreign

exchange risk exposure is manageable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B 1 E Wl e 5 5

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group mainly arises from the interest-bearing financial assets which
can be offset against the interest-bearing liabilities. The Group mitigates its interest rate risk
by revising the interest rates charged for the loans and advances to customers on an ongoing
basis. At the same time, the interest rate for bank borrowings are subject to re-pricing within
3 months or less, hence, the cash flow interest rate risk is considered to be manageable. Debt
investments held for trading are expected to be traded within a short period of time and their

interest rate risk is considered to be minimal.

Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor the availability and performance of various IT systems and
a dedicated team will act and report to the senior management in accordance with the
established procedures in the event of disruption, instability and other situations which may
warrant the triggering of the contingency procedures to protect the interests of clients. The
Group maintains and updates the operation manuals of its major operations on an ongoing
basis in accordance with the regulatory and industrial requirements. We have also put in place
competent compliance and internal audit functions with their respective aims at detecting
internal control risks and recommending policy changes as well as carrying out checks on

statutory compliance and the intemal rules and regulations.
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of interim dividend of HK$0.03 per ordinary share for
the six months ended 30 June 2016 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 5 September 2016. The dividend will be payable on or about
21 September 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 5 September 2016
to Thursday, 8 September 2016 for ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
interim dividend. No transfer of shares will be registered on these days. In order to qualify
for the proposed interim dividend, shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company's Hong Kong
Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 712-
I 716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, No.183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2 September 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their associates in
the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFO”) which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing

Rules”) were as follows:
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OTHER INFORMATION

Hitn&

Long position in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of
underlying
shares held

under equity

REXRAEBREABRONORE

Approximate
percentage
of the
Company’s

total issued

Number of derivatives share capital

awarded share BRASTE L NG|

Long/short Number of held IAT BRITRAK

Name of director positions share held FriERE FrisiEE Total AL

E=pR R/ RR PR & E BHBE BRHEE By BAL

YIM Fung Long 49,629,759 1,485,000 9,575,196 70,689,955 1.02%
]2 =9}

WONG Tung Ching Long 5,250,382 6,936,000 2,521,182 14,707,564 021%
B KB

QI Haiying Long — 1,736,000 9,000,000 10,736,000 0.15%
BB =9)

LI Guangjie Long 3,667,288 2,574,000 2,779,682 9,020970 0.13%
AN =9}

FU Tingmei Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
BEx KB

SONG Ming Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
REK Y-}

TSANG Yiu Keung Long 1,512,096 — — 1,512,096 0.02%
1% &8
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As at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

SHARED-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEME

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme") for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff
members. Eligible participants of the schemes include the Company's Directors (including

Independent Non-executive Directors) and other employees of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of assisting in recruiting,
retaining and motivating key staff members. The Board of Directors has the discretion to grant
share options to employees and directors of any members of the Group, including independent
non-executive directors. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for |0 years from that date (i.e, 18

June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000
shares). The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any |2-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time (i.e. 16,400,000 shares). Any further grant of share

options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a Director or chief executive of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders” approval in advance

in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ 1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which is not

later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the date of grant
of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares

for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

For the six months ended 30 June 2016, no share option has been granted by the Company.

15,965,212 share options were exercised during the period ended 30 June 2016 (2015:
36,002,907).
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Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the period ended 30 BE_T—R"FEA=THILERE - BRERT
June 2016 are as follows: EBETHEREZSNT -
Weighted
average
share price
Exercise  Share price immediately
priceof  immediately preceding the
share options preceding Options exercise date ~ Exercise price
atdate of grant ~ the grant date held at Options held (HKS) of share
(HKS) (HKS) 1 January 2016 Options e BEOE options
Options RIEBH BEEL RZZ-RE  granted during Exercised 2016 BEAN (HKS)
gated  BREN A% —A-B  theperiod duing  Lapsedduring WZF-AE  METFH e
Name of participants ~~ Date of grant bl i3 WiRE BEM  BAREN  teperod  teperiod AAZTA RE i3
SRENE Rl A FRE (%7) (n) FRE BRE HATE  BRXN HANERE  (En) (%7)
Directors
E2d
YIM Fung 24412012 6000000 250 251 - - - - - - 0827
i [0/172014 4750000 38 372 957519 - - - 957519 - 264
WONG Tung Ching 24412012 3000000 250 251 - - - - - - 0827
%5 101172014 2500000 38 3N 5042364 — (2921182 - 2521,182 196 264
QI Haiying (1162015 3000000 1456 1362 9000000 - - - 9000000 - 4854
g
Ll Guangjie 24412012 1,500000 250 251 - - - - - - 0827
A [0/172014 1,250,000 38 372 2779682 - - - 2779682 - 264
LI Sang, Edward* 24412012 1500000 250 251 - - - - - - 0827
Bh+ 101172014 1250000 38 3N 2519790 — (2519790 - - 207 264
FU Tingmed 240412012 500000 250 251 - - - - - - 0827
BiEx
SONG Ming 24412012 500000 250 251 - - - - - - 0827
R
TSANG Yiu Keung 24412012 500000 250 251 - - - - - - 0827
B
Employees 4412012 26500000 250 251 13,057,248 - - — 13057248 - 0827
€S 107172014 40250000 380 370 86792807 —  (1094240) (503957) 75364630 255 264
(1162015 1,500000 1456 1362 4500000 - - - 4500000 - 4854
In aggregate 24/472012 40,000,000 250 251 13,057,248 - - — 13057248 - 0827
aif 107172014 50,000,000 38 370 106709859 = (15%5212) (503957) 90240690 138 264
(1162015 4500,000 1456 1362 13500000 - - — 13500000 - -

* Mr. LI Sang, Edward resigned as a director on 24 February 2016.

Note: Upon completion of bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise price and the number of shares

to be issued and alloted under the outstanding share options had been adjusted pursuant to

the terms of the Share Options Scheme.
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Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded
to selected employees (including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme. The Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless
otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for |0 years from that date, ie., 26

October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the Share
Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme is limited to 0% of the
issued Share of the capital Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The
maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1%

of the issued share of the capital Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include service and/
or performance conditions, specified by the Board of Directors of the Company at the time of
making the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject of

the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.

No payment to purchase shares shall be made to the trustee of the Share Award Scheme and
no instructions to acquire shares shall be given to the trustee under the scheme where any
Director of the Company is in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation
to the Company or where dealings by Directors are prohibited under any code or rules and

applicable laws from time to time.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award Scheme shall be

exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain from voting.

As of 30 June 2016, the Company has granted in aggregate of 65,187,000 (31 December 2015:
37,200,000) Awarded Shares which represents 39.7% of the limit of the Share Award Scheme.
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The remaining number of the Awarded Shares can be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is 24,413,000 (31 December 2015: 126,800,000), representing 0.35% (31 December
2015: 1.83%) of the total number of issued shares, 6,950,273,413 (3| December 2015:
6,934,308,201) shares, of the Company as of 30 June 2016.

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 30 June 2016 are set out below:

BE_Z—REXNA=TH  BERHDER
ZInT R TR BN RIS EE 524,413,000

B(ZZ—HAFE+-A=+—H 126800000
R REARREHEITIRI 8806950273413
B(ZZ2—RF+=A=1—H 1693430820l
B)Mo3su(—E—hE+-_A=+—8:
1.83%)

RZF-RENAZTERHEABENEE
B eEFEeT

Average fair Number of

value per Number of Number of Awarded

share Number of Awarded Awarded Shares

(HK$) shares Shares vested Shares lapsed unvested

BR¥H awarded EEE BAM AR
Date of Award Shares granted SN ®E ®E ®E B Vesting date

ERROBL AN (&) ROHE BB E BB E ROBE HEBEH

9/412014 133 28,218,000 (18,894,000) (450,000) 8,874,000 30/11/2016
15/4/2015 3.29 34,853,000 (12,354,000) (399,000) 10,977,000  30/11/2016
10923000  30/11/2017
18/4/2016 2.79 27,987,000 — (230,000) 9,025000  30/11/2016

8982000  30/11/2017

8951000  30/11/2018
58000 4/10/2016
58,000  4/10/2017
58000 4/10/2018
208,000  31/3/2017
208,000  31/3/2018
209,000  31/3/2019

659,000 Awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a result of staff resignations for
the six months ended 30 June 2016 (2015: 108,000 Awarded Shares).

HE-Z— R EXAZTHIEAER 0 659,000
5 2B 19 (—Z—F4F ¢ 108,000 ik BB )
RNME B B MmN 558 B HIRT R -
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Movements of Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the six months ended 30

June 2016 are as follows:

BE-T-R"EAA=ZTHLERER B
BB TR RBBR N EDH T

Awarded Awarded
Shares at Shares at
| January 30 June
2016 Granted Lapsed 2016
R-E-RE during during R-E-RE§
Name of participants —H—H the period the period ~A=tAH Vesting date
SHRERR NEBRH AR BAXM NEBRG BERSY
Directors
EF
Yim Fung 9,141,000 2,344,000 — 6,917,000 3071172016
[l 3,787,000 3071172017
781,000 307112018
Wong Tung Ching 4,158,000 2,778,000 — 3,449,000 3071172016
I%E 2561000 30/11/2017
926,000 307112018
Qi Haiying — 1,736,000 — 579,000 307112016
BER 579000 30/1112017
578,000 3071172018
Li Guangjie ,185,000 1,389,000 — ,183,000 307112016
FHRA 928,000 3071172017
463,000 3071172018
LI Sang, Edward* 990,000%* — — — —
FE* —

* Mr. LI Sang , Edward resigned as a director on 24 February 2016, 990,000 Awarded Shares
of Mr. Li vested on 24 Feburary 2016.
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Awarded Awarded
Shares at Shares at
| January 30 June
2016 Granted Lapsed 2016
R=B-—XRF during during R-Z-—X%¥
Name of participants —H—AH the period the period ~B=1H Vesting date
SREME NEBRH AR BAXK WRARG HEAH
Employees 16,719,000 19,740,000 (659,000) 58,000 04/102016
ES 16,748,000 30/11/2016
208,000 31/03/2017
58,000 04/102017
12,050,000 30/11/2017
208,000 31/03/2018
58,000 04/102018
6,203,000 30/11/2018
209,000 31/03/2019
In aggregate 32,193,000 27,987,000 (659,000) 58,000 04/102016
a5t 28876000 30/11/2016
208,000 31/03/2017
58,000 04/102017
19,905,000 3071112017
208,000 31/03/2018
58,000 04/10/2018
8,951,000 30/11/2018
209,000 31/03/2019
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the
period ended 30 June 2016, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not signed any
agreements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares or
debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for

securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSON’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, the following persons (not being a Director of the Company) have
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have
been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of shares

ESRARDIEEZNEN

Br E X BN BB AR 81 R B0 RR Rt Sl B R
W BET-REFRAZTHRILEHE AR
Al R BB A R B B R A ek - DGR
EZRBEARD B S EAEE OB X
EREF(BREER)OHAMEN: EF
HEBH 185U T TR ERBARRES
HERIRER] - HEITEEELFEN -

FTERRREMATRRORBBR G HE
#HRKR

RZE-RERA=TR " TIALALHFAR
AIER)RARENRGD REBR O P HEERIE
ERRHEHRIEXVEE2 K30 HBHEXE
AARARE  ZREFFRBEHRIFE 336
i BHERZGEPIARTERRBAFENET
fAMEDZIARIT :

Approximate percentage of issued

share capital of the Company

BRHEE ARREBRTRABHEDH
Name of shareholders Long positions Short positions Long positions Short positions
BRREH RE KR RE KR
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited 4,527,057,800 Nil 65.13% Nil
BHRELERERAR & i
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (Note) 4,527,057,800 Nil 65.13% Nil
RRELERERBRAR (HEE) H =
Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd (Note) 4,527,057,800 Nil 65.13% Nil
RREZEFRMBERAF (M) e =
Shanghai International Group Co,, Ltd (Note) 4,527,057,800 Nil 65.13% Nil
LEBEREEARAR (HE) i il
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Note: Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
which in tumn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. Guotai Junan
Securities Co., Ltd. is a controlled corporation of Shanghai International Group Co,, Ltd.
Accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd and
Shanghai International Group Co., Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of

the Company as Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, the Company has not been notified by any
persons (other than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 29 January 2014, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement A") with certain financial institutions (as lenders) in respect of a revolving loan
facility and a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of HK$3,300 million for a term of 3

years.

On 29 April 2015, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai Junan
(Hong Kong) Limited (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement
B, together withe Facility Agreement A, the “Facility Agreements”) with certain financial
institutions (as lenders) in respect of a revolving loan facility and a term loan facility in an

aggregate amount of HK$ 10,500 million for a term of 3 years.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan Securities Co.,
Ltd, the controlling shareholder of the Company, does not, or cease to directly or indirectly
own, legally and beneficially, at least 51% of the interest of the Company. In case of an event
of default, the lenders may, by notice to borrower (i) cancel all or part of the loan; and/or (i)
declare all or part of the loan, together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Facility Agreements be immediately due and payable and/or (iii) declare

that all or part of the loan become payable on demand.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

For the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Company has adopted the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Govemning the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) as its own code of corporate
governance. During the period, save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all

the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

In respect of code provision A.2.1, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are not separated and are not performed by two different individuals. The Directors
consider that vesting the two roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the Group's business strategies and

is beneficial to the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code™) as set out in the Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules regarding
securities transactions by its Directors. The Company has made specific enquiry with all
Directors regarding any noncompliance with the Model Code. All the Directors confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
period commencing from 8 July 2010 (being the date on which the shares of the Company first

commenced dealing on the Stock Exchange) to the date of this interim report.

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Dr. SONG Ming was appointed as an independent director of Tande Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, with effect from 30 December 2015.

Mr. LI Sang, Edward resigned as an Executive Director and the Company Secretary of the

Company on 24 February 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to

Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 19 June 2010. The committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Fu Tingmei (Chairman), Dr. Song
Ming and Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung. The responsibilities of the committee include setting remuneration
policy of the Group and fixing remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the Board

as a whole in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee was established on 9 June 2010. The committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung (Chairman), Dr. Song Ming

and Dr. Fu Tingmei. The Chairman of the committee has professional accounting qualification.

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters including a general review of the consolidated interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2016. The Group's exteral auditor has carried out a review
of the interim financial information in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Review
Engagements 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent

Auditor of the Entity” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee currently
comprises two independent non-executive Directors Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman) and Mr.
TSANG Yiu Keung; and one executive Director Dr. Yim Fung. The primary responsibilities
of the committee are, amongst other things, to make recommendations to the Board on

appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

RISK COMMITTEE

The Risk Committee was established on |7 June 2016. The Committee currently comprises
two executive Directors Dr. YIM Fung (Chairman), Ms. QI Haiying; and three independent
non-executive Directors Dr. Fu Tingmei, Dr. Song Ming and Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung. The primary
responsibilities of the committee are, among the other things, to supervise and manage the
overall risk appetite and tolerance and risk management framework of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

By order of the Board
YIM Fung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 August 2016
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

T 1 % S i B g

e
EY::

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information set out on pages 36 to |16, which
comprises the condensed consolidated statement of financial position of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
as at 30 June 2016 and the related condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period then ended,
and other explanatory notes. The Main Board Listing Rules Govemning the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of a report on interim
financial information to be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“HKAS 34") issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of this
interim financial information in accordance with HKAS 34. Our responsibility is to express
a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

34 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Review Engagements
2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial
and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not

express an audit opinion.

CONCLUSION
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with HKAS

34.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

19 August 2016
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Al GEHR R RR

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THIAEA

2016 2015
—E-RF “Z-h%F
Unaudited Unaudited
REEY REEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
Pt aE TER TAET
Revenue Weas 4 1,210,901 216,309
Other income Hi A 1,450 908
Revenue and other income Weas R E A A 1,212,351 1217217
Staff costs BIMA 5 (241,694) (241,767)
Commission to account executives EPIRe (31,871) (75,675)
Other commission expenses HinfeRx (17,652) (17,632)
Performance fee expense FEBRY — (4,577)
Depreciation e (16,982) (13,653)
Net impairment charge on loans and advances to customers & P B3 & B 50RE 5 I — (50)
Net impairment charge on accounts receivable e R IE R (B3 58 13(a) (14) (4,797)
Other operating expenses Hi &R (93,582) (73218)
Operating profit &R 810,556 785,848
Finance costs - N 6 (171,018) (90,.827)
Profit before tax BRBLAT R 7 639,538 695,021
Income tax expense FEHiR X 8 (98,358) (92,457)
Profit for the period AR 541,180 602,564
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax HrEAE2ERE  NBRHEE
— Exchange difference on translation of foreign exchange —HMNEE HZEE (60) —
Total comprehensive income for the period HRZERREH 541,120 602,564
36 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AsGHaRE b2k ER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THIAEA

2016 2015
ZB-RF —ZT-n%F
Unaudited Unaudited
REEY REEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
P TER TAET
Profit for the period attributable to owners of the parent: R A T HEB AELHREF 541,074 600,537
— Holders of ordinary shares —ERBRRE 536,704 600,537
— Holders of other equity instrument —HtERTARAA 4,370 -
Non-controlling interests B 106 2,027
541,180 602,564
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable (SNGIE Z=PN; S
to owners of the parent: 2HIKZHLE 541,014 600,537
— Holders of ordinary shares — BT 536,644 600,537
— Holders of other equity instrument —HtERTARAA 4,370 -
Non-controlling interests JEIEf 106 2,027
541,120 602,564
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary BAREBRRR
equity holders of the parent EEgREF
~ Basic (in HK cents) —EAR(LABALE) 10(a) 7.8 8.84
~ Diluted (in HK cents) —BE(DABALED) 10(b) 7.73 8.69
HHEZLXBEBRERERA A 37
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
i B x5 5 S A R R

Asat As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
R-B-RE RN_Z—RF
AR=tH fZA=t—H
Unaudited Audited
REER KEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
[ TET TR
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 501,070 512,166
Intangible assets B AE 2,823 2,823
Deferred tax assets EXEHBEE 407 576
Other assets HinBE 5,088 5043
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RATEABRNEREE 14 182,427 120,141
Total non-current assets FRDEELE 691,815 640,749
Current assets RBEE
Loans and advances to customers RFERRBK I 14,514,368 12,375,857
Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements I [m) 51 8 1Hh 3 FE IR IR 16 167,210 509,695
Accounts receivable WA 13 2,556,940 1932,19
Prepayments, deposits BRNHE Bk
and other receivables H fth TR 168,442 258,782
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRATEFABEZNGREE |4 8,569,607 4506,947
Derivative financial instruments TEERTA 15 65932 24952
Tax recoverable EEEDE 6,701 8,677
Client trust bank balances RPEFRITER 15,147,120 14,662,991
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReFED 3,290,883 2,408,666
Total current assets r@gE€® 4‘},?_87,203 | 36,688,686
38 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
R-B-—R% RZE—AH%F
AA=+tH +ZHA=t+—H
Unaudited Audited
REER REZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
ik TER THET
Current liabilities REAE

Accounts payable FERIRIE 17 (16,786,349) (18218312)
Other payables and accrued liabilities A FE T IE R R FUE (178,316) (259.942)
Derivative financial instruments TTHEEMIA 15 (121,245) (29,766)
Bank borrowings ITER 18 (8,379.278) (4765,662)
Debt securities in issue BRITEKES 19 (3,850,542) (2,358,088)
— At amortised cost —RB AR (276,470) (429,040)
— Designated as at fair value through profit or loss —BERERTESARS (3,574,072) (1929,048)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BATESFABRNEMAERE 20 (2,663,760) (505,340)
Obligations under repurchase agreements O A B 21 (648,194) (400,517)
Tax payable FERTIA (133,579) (44,282)
Total current liabilities RBAEAR (32,761,263) (26,581,909)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 11,725,940 10,106,777
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBEE 12,417,755 10,747,526

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings FITER 18 (2,100,000 (3,090,000)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHERE (29,085) (22,269)
(2,129,085) (3,112,269)
Net assets EERE 10,288,670 7,635,257
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
i B x5 5 S A R R

Asat As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
RZB-RF R-_ZE—1LF
AR=tH fZA=t—H
Unaudited Audited
REER KEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
[ TET TR
Equity B
Share capital R 23 6,030,256 6,004,362
Other reserve A (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve ERHhEREE (185) (125)
Share-based compensation reserves AR RERHERR 111,806 95417
— Share option reserve -BRERE 24 47,676 44,469
— Share award reserve — i EEN R 25 64,130 50,948
Shares held under the share award scheme Rk BB B A RN 26 (191,003) (199,643)
Retained profits REEF 3,228,385 2960013
Equity attributable to holders of ordinary shares LA R G ER 7,942,799 7623564
Equity attributable to holders of other equity instrument HinEn TERAARGER 22 2,334,021 —
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BARHE AEGER 10,276,820 7,623,564
Non-controlling interests SEIEfR e 11,850 ['1,693
Total equity EEAH 10,288,670 7635257
40 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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Equity attributable to owners of the parent

&

Unaudted

Balnce at | fanuary 2016

Total comprehensive income for the period

Capital contribution from minarity nterests

Recogntion of equit-settled share based
payments (Note )

Rk

R-F-RE-R-Rieh

#reaheng

JEBRELE

EERAEIRI AR
A3t(Hits)

Purchase of shares held under the share EERERN A ERSEY
awardscheme (Note 2] R 0)

Vesting of shares for the for the share ORIl
awad stheme (Notes 25 and 6) (HiEB k)

Shares fsued upon exercie o hare options REREEETHEREROE
under the share option scheme (Note 24) MRAHRH (M)
Isuance of perpetual securties BkERs
Perpetualsecurties distrbution KEREIK

Fine ividend for 2015 (Note ) Z5-RERERE(HH)
btern diicend for 016 RIS ERRERN-F-1E
paid to minorty inerests (Note) RERE(H)

Balance at 30 une 016 AZE-RERACTRER

Note: Interim dividend paid to minority shareholders of a subsidiary.

Shares

BLTRAARRE
Currency Share Share  the share
translation option award award

reee resere resee  scheme
hERS
g | B EE:HY
B BER ABEE RENRG
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK§'000
Tén  TEn  TER  TER

M XAMBARSBBRROFERE




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

AlGGEREHR
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
BRTRRARGER
Shares
held
under
Curency Share Share  the share QOther Non-
Share Other ~ franltion option award awerd  Retained equty controling Tote
capital resenve resenve reserve reserve - scheme profits — instrument Totd  interests equty
£ RERh
B %8 BR 0 Rh £ R Ao Ak B
e @k BB BRE  EBEE FEOBh 0 Y BRTRE &t B 48
HO00  HG00  HG00  HS00  HE00  HE00  HE00  HKS000  HKF00  HKFOW  HKSOW
T THR TAL AL THR TR TER  THL TR ThE TR
Unaudted R
Belence at | January 2015 R-E-15-A-Diks 552194 (1236460) - £36% 13864 (102897)  2464%% = 70548 9601 705214
Totalcomprehensiv income for the period Rk - - - - - - 0y - sy W
Recogiton of equity-seted share ised BN EREENRNAEEY
pament (Note 5 firzlas) - - - 859 0 - - - X - W
Purchase of shares held under the shere EERERDERATSR
awardshere (Note ) HRA (H3k26) - - - - - (19) - - () - ()
Sheres sued upon evercie ofsare options REREIATHRRER
under he share option sheme (Note 24) SEGEDOIGRD) 14530 - - ) - - - - 5% - Is%
Find dividend declared (Note 9) BRERE9) - - - - - = (%) = (B - (%78
Balnce at 30 ure 2015 AZE-RESAZTANES SUT514 - (136440) =W A s — TR 188 7309
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For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILAMEA

2016 2015
—-~E —T-1F
Unaudited Unaudited
REER REEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
[ T TR
Net cash flows used in operating acivides | REERFAACHARE > SRS (654830)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYME  WHERK (5,885) (9,365)
Netashfowsusedinimestingactiitis ~ BEESMARCAESE S = O3
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Dividend paid to shareholders SANET & 9 (275,321) (296,787)
Dividend paid to minority interest holders XN DBRRER A ARS (1,500) —
Capital contribution from minority interest holders PERF R E 1,551 —
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities BITREBEFENE 3,004,735 570,564
Repayment of debt securities BREBES (1,512,281) (303492)
Net proceeds from bank loans BOTERAEHIEFE 2,623,616 7,780,514
Net proceeds from the issuance of other equity instrument ~ E¥{TE gz T &
PSR 2 2,329,651 —
Net proceeds from issuance of shares upon FFE R TR M &I TR G
exercise of share options FriSsIE %8 24 20,180 105,567
Purchase of shares held under the share award scheme BERBMRN RE: 2
A B 26 (3,715) (119,897)

Net cash flows from financing activities BERHRENEFE 6,186,916 7,736,469




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AlGaREREXR

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1THILAEA

2016 2015
—E-RE 0%
Unaudited Unaudited
RBEY REEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
[ FER TAT
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEEMENTE 876,070 1,172,274
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period Hﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ@&iﬂ 2 EEM 2,408,666 889,286
Effect of foreigh exchange rate changes, net EXFBNTEFE (60) —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period MARReLR2EEY 3,284,676 2,061,560
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents RERBRESENNERIN
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHES 1,891,540 2,011,560
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of less BRI BARE=EA
than three months when acquired B AR R 1,393,136 50,000
Cash and cash equivalent as stated in the statement REERERTRMZES
of cash flow FRZEEY) 3,284,676 2,061,560
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity more B REIEAE Z R =18 A
than three months HAREREERER 6,207 —
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the statement REBIRARF R ZERE
of financial position MIREEED 3,290,883 2,061,560
44 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”) and its
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of the Company is 27th
Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The
Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing, financial

products, market making and investments.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding company are Guotai
Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and Guotai
Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”) incorporated in the People's

Republic of China, respectively.

This unaudited interim financial information is presented in thousands of Hong Kong

dollars (HK$' 000), unless otherwise stated.

This unaudited interim financial information was approved by the Board for issue on 19

August 2016.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The unaudited interim financial information for the six months ended 30 June 2016
has been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS")
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA™). The unaudited interim financial information should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 3| December 2015, which have been prepared in accordance with

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs").
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Tp 31 5 s R B st

46

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The financial information relating to the year ended 31 December 2015 that is included
in the Interim Report 2016 as comparative information does not constitute the
Company's statutory annual consolidated financial statements for that year but is derived
from those financial statements. Further information relating to these statutory financial
statements required to be disclosed in accordance with section 436 of the Companies

Ordinance is as follows:

The Company has delivered the financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2015 to the Registrar of Companies as required by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of

Schedule 6 to, the Companies Ordinance.

The Company's auditor has reported on those financial statements. The auditors’ report
was unqualified; did not include a reference to any matters to which the auditors drew
attention by way of emphasis without qualifying their report; and did not contain a

statement under sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Companies Ordinance.

The accounting policies and basis of preparation applied in the preparation of the
unaudited interim financial information and the use of certain critical accounting
judgments and estimates are the same as those used in the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 disclosed in the 2015
annual report of the Company, except for the adoption of accounting policy relating to

perpetual security and the revised HKFRSs as described below.

(@  The Group has adopted the following accounting policy relating to perpetual

security for the first time for this period:

Perpetual security is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable
only at the issuer's option and the issuer has the option to defer any distribution.
Distribution to holders of perpetual security classified as equity is recognised as

distribution within equity.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
2016 Interim Report
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING ),

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Tp 31 5 s R B s

POLICIES (continued)

(b)

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the (b)

current period's financial information:

BREERSHBKLEH(E)

AEBEDHE AR EERER

R TR ERHHREE

Al

Effective for financia

Standard Content years beginning on/after
RT5RfE 2 &M%

%A AR R B EE N

Amendments to HKFRS 0, Investment Entities Applying the Consolidation Exception | January 2016
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (201 1)

BRMBREERSE 105 BRMHHRE RETE : RRAGAARNHIIMER “E-R"¥-A-H
HRAE 12 RBB G ERE 285
(ERTAR)N(ZF——F)

Amendments to HKFRS | | Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations | January2016

BRMBHRERERE |1 RUEFTX) WBREXBHRENER A “E-R"¥-A-H

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts | January 2016

BRMBREERE 145 REBTRE “E-R"¥-A-H

Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure Initiative | January 2016

BREFHERE | KB X) W2 “Z-R"¥-A-H

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation | January 2016
and HKAS 38 and Amortisation

ERGTENE 16 REESHER BENERBHO ARSI IA “Z-R"¥-A-H
ERELACHEN)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture Bearer Plants | January 2016
and HKAS 41

BREGHERE 16 RBBGHER BE EENEY —Z-R"¥-A—-H
F 415 (BRTA)

Amendments to HKAS 27 (201 1) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements | January 2016

BRGERNE27REAR) B RER LD A “E-R"¥-A-H
(Z%—%)

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs | January 2016
2012-2014 Cycle

“E-CHFECT-MERENFENE ZRABUHREEL(EIR) “E-R"f¥-A-H

BHRELZEREEERAR

n)
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Tp 31 5 s R B st

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 2 REREENETHRLEH(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(b)  The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the b) AEEEREBPEUBEHER
current period's financial information: (continued) RN TRETERMBREE
Al (&)
The nature and the impact of those HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group is BEARAEENZEEENBR
as follows: FRAMMERTZENT -
*  Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure Initiative o EARGHENEIRUE
) Eit &
Amendments to HKAS | include narrow-focus improvements in EAQHEANE KB
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The R)ERHTBHRRHOLES
amendments clarify: ERBESERENAS

?ft ° EZ%{ nTF/FJ :

() the materiality requirements in HKAS |; () EAQHENE IR
ARNERERTE -

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and other (ih BEREM2ER
comprehensive income and the statement of financial position may = REBARR KA
be disaggregated; BHEBEAATAS

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present iy EBREFZIHB
the notes to financial statements; and BEMEMIEFES

R R

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates and vy FEREZEARND
joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be HEHMERAREER
presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between ) B EL i 2 [E Ui e
those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to RIEREBHEBER
profit or loss. £§‘J I B e S

sHEENHER
Eam&%ﬁﬁﬁ

= s
11588 -
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Tp 31 5 s R B s

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 2 GEREERETHRLEH(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(b)  The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the b) AEEEREAHETBERER
current period's financial information: (continued) RN TRETERMBREE
Al (&)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when
additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial position
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
Group adopted the amendments from | January 2016. The amendments

are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial

BESN - Ex@ﬂ%ﬂ/%-f EUNE
MRk kB kA2 EK
mRAZINEINFEER
MRT - ARER =T
F-A-BERMNZLEE

statements. HEEICHE S =N

RENYBRAELEAE
AYE -

. Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable o BEQHENE 6K REE
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation EREEERELACCHE)

BITE REHA T ER %

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in HKAS BEAGHEAE 6 RER
[6 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern or economic benefits S EAIFEIHRUEFTA)
that are generated from operating business (of which the asset is part) BEBRBGEUE 6K

rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the use BEAGFERE38FHNR
of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to = Eay g =R
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very (REERHE—HD)EED
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are BN @K ER I EAE
to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not expected to have REERRNKENE

I WEENBRRITEY
¥ BELkx#E LAREE
FRARNER T A
HEVEAE - ZFEIIH
FER - BHZFEIN_-F
“ANE-A-BRBERD
SUARKENRBRR IR
RELEMPE  RERK
SEYRERRGEETER
FMBEENNE -

any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on | January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-based

method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

B %= F % B R

n)
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 2 REREENETHRLEH(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(b)  The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the b) AEEEREBPEUBEHER
current period's financial information: (continued) RN TRETERMBREE
8 (&)

* Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle ° BB EER —F——
FE-E-NFEHNFR

2
The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle issued in RZF-—MFE+ABRBNE
October 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group B BHE RN —F——F
adopted the amendments from | January 2016. None of the amendments E_E-MEBHHFEL
are expected to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Details EHINLEEBMBRELE
of the amendments are as follows: ARET - REER T

—RE-A-BREMZF
ER] - BMRFETHA
SUREERBREAMBY
- BX HEI NN

=

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Clarifies that the disclosures in BEEMBHRELNE 7R
respect of the offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities in HKFRS BITA #E: BEHAR
7 are not required in the condensed interim financial information, except HMBERTERTEEHR
where the disclosures provide a significant update to the information BREENETRPABE
reported in the most recent annual report, in which case the disclosures HeRBERSRAGBHR
should be included in the condensed interim financial information. B BRIFRBRUKONF

BT REERNEREH -
ERBERT  REEHAMG
B BB B o
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(b)  The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the

current period's financial information: (continued)

. Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (continued)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: Clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds used for discounting the post-employment benefit
obligation for defined benefit plans is assessed based on the currency
in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where
the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality

corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. Clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial information or
incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements
and wherever they are included within the interim financial report. The
amendments also specify that the information within the interim financial
report must be available to users on the same terms as the interim

financial information and at the same time.

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group's senior executive management and in accordance with HKFRSs,
The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed separately according
to the nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each of the Group's
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that offers services which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other operating

segments.

T 1 3 7% A R

BREERSHBKLEH(E)

b) AEEEREAHETBERER
RMATRETEBT RS E
Al (&)

) ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁifﬂ:%—:
FEZF-MFEEAHFE
&ﬁﬁw

BEQHENE IRESHE
F - BERRTE T BREF
SENEREENEINE
BEAREFNMISRE AR
BERHEEEmMIFEREME
BIRaTE - WZEENEE
RRIEFTEFATS - Al
BERBRFESRME

BRGRRIE 4RI
BHE  BERENT R
BARNTHMBER D
IR BHRER < REE
SREBABT AT BHE
HRE o ZEFTTRE - 7 H
PHERNERARE S
BBRR AR T ARNA
FEEHRPER

N

BEIBEH

BENHBRENTARREEN B RS
EREAAKESRITHEEABRY
MARERSE - ARENEERBT)

REBUERMRERBIHABNE
o REERTSEED B BRER
BHORBEEBEN - AREHIATER
REHAERNNEMEEDE

B %= F % B R

n)
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52

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

@

the brokerage segment engages in the provision of securities, futures and
options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking as well as insurance

brokerage services to customers;

the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of advisory services,

placing and underwriting services of debt and equity securities;

the asset management segment engages in asset management, including fund

management and the provision of investment advisory services;

the loans and financing segment engages in the provision of margin financing
and securities borrowing and lending to customers, initial public offering (“IPO™)

loans, other loans to customers and bank deposits;

the financial products, market making and investments segment represents fund
and equity investments, structuring of financial products as well as trading and

market making of debt securities, exchange traded funds and derivatives; and

the “others” segment mainly represents rental income and the provision of

information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the prices charged

to third parties. There was no change in the basis during the six months ended 30 June

2016 and 2015.
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3.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. REIVBERE)
The unaudited segment results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016 ARBBEE_Z-R"ER A=ZTAHLER
are as follows: EANMAEEZDBEENT

Financial

products,

market

making and

Loansand  investments

Corporate Asset financing SRER
Brokerage finance  management E¥R Hm R Others Total
Bm Lx@E HEEE i k& B @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEx TEn FEnr  FEnr  FEn  TEx

Segment revenue and other income: A REMMA -

Sales to external customers HEFHIEP
Inter-segment sales DL REE
Tota @t
Segment results PHEE
Income tax expense FERAR
Proft for the period iyl
Other segment information: i HHEH -
Depreciation e
Finance costs HERR




NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Tp 31 5 s R B st
3.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. RESIBERE)
The unaudited segment results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2015 AEEBRE-_TE-RAFAA=TAHLER
are as follows: ERAMRCEZADEENT ¢
Financial
products,
market
making and
Loansand  investments
Corporate Asset francng  BEEM °
Brokerage finance  management EFR ik Others Total
Be  (PREE  AEER ME &g -4 &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AL AL TAL AL TAL TAL AL
Segment revenue and other income 7 EE RERMA -
Sales to extemal customers HETHIEP 436421 129,724 4584 512809 102,761 08 1207217
Inter-segment sales A BHE - - - - - - -
Total st 436411 129,724 584 51809 10276 08 1207217
Segment resulfs PEHEE 194657 68978 15032 326267 90067 - 695021
Income tax expense ERAx (92457)
Proft for the period Eilayayl 602,564
Other segment information: EAHEH -
Deprecation | 4867 277 642 5368 - - 13653
Finance costs BEANA 7 - - 78368 12452 - 087
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4. REVENUE 4. K&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WEH AT -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEEAA=1THLEAEAR

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-0%
Unaudited Unaudited
REER RIEEZ
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TET TET
Brokerage: S
Securities s 392,198
Futures and options HiE K HE 22,493
Handling income FEEHA 16,720
Leveraged foreign exchange TEIE N E 1,192
Insurance Rbg 3818
R —— sea2l
Corporate finance: rERE :
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting commission ~ BR& ~ HEH R D EHEA S
— Debt securities —BBES 34312
— Equity securities —IRAES 58,809
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income BERRBEZAERA 36,603
129,724
Asset management: BEER:
Management fee income EEBRA 23,800
Performance fee income =BEBHA 10,784




NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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4. REVENUE (continued) 4. W&E(E)

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAR=THILAMEA

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-0%F
Unaudited Unaudited
REER REEZ
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FHET TAT

Loans and financing: ERLEE -
Interest and handling income from margin loans FRERHNHERFEBRA 553,877 438,147
Interest and handling income from term loans FHEFNFENFEERA 27,347 17,205
Interest income from securities borrowing and lending %8 %5 fEEF S WA 10,616 16,698
Interest income from reverse repurchase agreements [ 1m) [E] 88 175 23 1 S A 360 —
Interest income from IPO loans BRAREEEHRF WA 74 4869
Interest income from banks and others HRIT R EADF S WA 40,863 35,900
__________ 633,137 512819
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4.

REVENUE (continued)

4. WE(E)

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANAZTHILEAER

2016
—EB-AE
Unaudited
REER
HK$’ 000
FHET

Financial products, market making and investments:
Trading gain/(loss) on debt securities
— Listed securities
— Unlisted securities
Interest income from debt securities
— Listed securities
— Unlisted securities
Trading loss on exchange traded funds
Trading (loss)/gain on equity securities
Trading gain on unconsolidated investment funds
Net gain on foreign exchange
Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments designated
as at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income from unlisted financial instruments
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income

Net income on structured financial products

SRER  HARRE
EBEFZHUE (BR)
— EMEF
—FLWEF
BB E R BHA
— EMEF
—FLWEF
RGMRFEERHER
BAEHR S (BR), W
FaMREESRHNE
SN U 5 50
EERATEMABSNEE
TEN(ER) M F8
BERNFEFABSNIE LD
SR TANNEHRA
BB
HBRUESRERRAFE

2015
—T-0F
Unaudited
RISEZ
HK$' 000
FET

(3438)
5115

27,277
3,157

34,728
12,047

12,612

1,533
3957
5773

102,761

1,216,309
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5.  STAFF COSTS

BIRA

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAR=THILAMEA

2016 2015
ZB-RF —ZT-h%
Unaudited Unaudited
REER AEERZ
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET THET
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): EINA(BREZNE) :

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e BA R 197,154 203,131

Share-based compensation expenses VAR AR E R <
— Share option scheme — R 2l 8921 8569
— Share award scheme —IR1D BT B 32,526 27,760
Pension scheme contributions BARESFTEIER 3,093 2,307
241,694 241,767

6.  FINANCE COSTS

MERAR

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THLERER

2016 2015
—B-RE T
Unaudited Unaudited
REER REE
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FHET THET
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITERREL 161,664 89,056
Debt securities in issue ERTERES 3,865 473
Securities borrowing and lending BHEE 561 575

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss BATEGFAEENEHIA
— Listed debt securities held for trading —FHEEBN LTEBRES 4,057 6
Repurchase agreements (o] B8 th i 382 —
Others Hity 489 717
171,018 90,827
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BRBE AT A
REBABRBATE M &R, (Gt A)
NT&BEBHE :

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7.
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THILEAEA

2016 2015
ZB-AF “T-hF
Unaudited Unaudited
REER NEEZ
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Professional and consultancy fee EEREAE 20,120 16,466
Information services expense BARBHX 10,661 5962
Repair and maintenance (including system maintenance) 415 R 4 E (BIE R G ME) 13,917 13,190
Marketing, advertising and promotion expenses THEE  BEREERX 4,007 3,321
Minimum lease payments under operating lease rEMENRKERS 2,558 151
Foreign exchange difference, net HNEFE TR (1,548) (3,191)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FRE#Ex
For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEAER
2016 2015
ZB-AF —T-hF
Unaudited Unaudited
REER NEEZ
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TR TAT
Current, Hong Kong KA
— Charge for the period —EBENERE 91,374 89,845
Deferred EIT 6,984 2612
Total tax charge for the period HNTIAR X 85 98,358 92,457

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the

estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the period.

BERFEHDRBRERBEENE
FERFRFIRB R 165%(ZF—RF
16.5%) Bt -
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PROPOSED INTERIM/FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed an interim dividend of approximately HK$206,448,000 or
HK$0.03 per ordinary share (2015: HK$239,139,000 or HK$0.035 per ordinary share)
after the adjustment of excluding the dividend for the shares held under the share
award scheme of the Company amounting to approximately HK$2,060,000 (2015:
HK$3,398,000) for the six months ended 30 June 2016. The interim dividend proposed
after the reporting date has not been recognized as a liability in the unaudited interim

financial information at the end of the reporting period.

The Board declared a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2015 on 18 March 2016 and paid the final dividend of approximately
HK$275,321,000 on 10 June 2016, as further adjusted to include the dividend for shares

issued under the share option scheme which amounted to approximately HK$639,000.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

(a)  Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamnings per share for the period ended 30 June 2016
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of
HK$536,704,000 (2015: HK$600,537,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue less shares held under the Company's share award

scheme of 6,876,116,000 (2015: 6,795,590,000) during the period.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the

period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted

average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of

ordinary shares in issue during the period, as used in the basic earmings per share

calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to

have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of

all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows:

10.

T 1 3 7% A R

BRAAEERBRREAEZRERN(E)

(b) BREZEAN

SREERNTRE AR ERRR
REGHNENFTE - S ERKHME
& BB E TR B R
ERBMAFANARCRTER
BREHB - ARBRANAEBEH
BERRRRARTRIBARE
BB D RTRERTHERRM
BYaE -

BRESRAGRENOT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1THILAEA

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-hfF
Unaudited Unaudited
REEX AEEZ
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders SUNGESER Gy
of the parent (in HK$' 000) (AFETat) 536,704 600,537
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ARG ESRERBINEET
in issue less shares held for the share award LR INAE T BURR R (5
scheme used in the basic eamnings per REEtEF AR, (ATED)
share calculation (in "000) 6,876,116 6,795,590
Effect of dilution — weighted average number BEYE - TRRNMET9E :
of ordinary shares:
Share options under the share option IR BITE T AR ARIE (A T5T)
scheme (in '000) 50,205 91,060
Awarded shares under the share &t 2Bt 2178 T 69 SR AR 1
award scheme (in’ 000) (BAF3H) 14,152 26,585
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose REREFRFMENLTAREE
of diluted earnings per share (in ' 000) (BAF3T) 6,940,473 6913235
Diluted eamings per share (in HK cents) BRREERN (LABILE) 173 8.69
HZZXBEBRERERAR 61
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Il. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS . BEFEXRBR
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
R=Z-—RF RZZE—h%F
AA=ZtH +ZA=1—H
Unaudited Audited
RBEY RERZ
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FER TAET
Margin loans FRER 13,279,000 11963214
Term loans to customers EPEBER 1,188,066 413573
IPO loans BRAREEER 48232 —
Gross loans and advances to customers KPERRBTEE 14,515,298 12,376,787
Less: impairment A ORE (930) (930)
14,514,368 12,375,857
The movements in provision for impairment of loans and advances to customers are as KPERRBHREREZHNOT
follows:
2016 2015
“B-RE —T-hF
Unaudited Audited
REER REZ
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
T TR
As at | January ®w—A—H 930 757
Impairment charged to profit or loss during B/ FRi ABERE
the period/year — 980
Impairment reversed to profit or loss during H/FREEEERE
the period/year — (807)
As at 30 June 2016/31 December 2015 R-ZE—R"EXA=tRH/
“E-RE+ZA=1+—H 930 930
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
Save as disclosed above, all loans and advances to customers were neither past due nor

impaired as at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015.

The impairment charged to profit or loss included interest income on impaired margin

loans of Nil (2015: HK$50,000) for the six months ended 30 June 2016.

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities transactions, which
are secured by customers’ securities held as collateral. The maximum credit limit granted
for each customer is based on the customer’s financial background and the quality
and value of the related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and the Credit and Risk Management Department will monitor

credit risks.

Margin loans to customers are secured by the underlying pledged securities, bear
interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are repayable
on demand. The carrying values of margin loans approximate to their fair values. No
aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), an aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of
the margin loan business. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is
determined by the discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by
the Group. As at 30 June 2016, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the margin loans was approximately HK$49,557 million (31 December 2015:
HK$55,440 million) based on the market value of the securities as at the end of the

reporting period.

B %= F % B R

T 1 3 7% A R
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the interest rates,
reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant customers and the quality
and value of the collateral pledged. The term loans granted to customers amounted
to HK$1,165,112,000 (31 December 2015: HK$413,040,000), and accrued interest
amounted to HK$22,954,000 (31 December 2015: HK$533,000) as at 30 June 2016.

The carrying amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their fair values.

BEFERRBIN(E)

EFEHER
AEETMEFRETHEN - RET
MEE  @2ZHBEFNEERRIN
RAEANERRERREBE N8
—RNERAZTHETEPHTEHER
BE1,1651120008T(ZFE—RhFE+=
A=+—H 413,040,000/ 7T) * fE5F
B/229540008T(ZF—HFE+=A
=+—H:533000&T) BEFEHE
HEOBREEREATFERE

LOANS TO DIRECTORS 2. EEEX
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) (d) of the Hong Kong REE B R BVEHIE383(1)(d) R A F
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about (BREESFRER)RPIEIDHRE &
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows: EERRENT
Maximum Maximum
amount amount
At outstanding At outstanding At
30 June during the 31 December during the | January
2016 period 2015 prior year 2015
RZZ-A%F HagE R-T-IF tFABRE R-T-IF
AAZtH AEEESE t-A=t-H AMEBEE —A—-H
Name HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  Collateral Held
g TAT TAT TAT TAT TEL BEER
Mr. LI Guangjie 40 648 364 1,801 Nil  Marketable securities
FREFE & BEES

The loans granted to a director bear interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 3%

per annum and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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13.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

@)

Analysis of accounts receivable

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of business of

the Group are as follows:

13.

B RIR

(@)

Accounts receivable arising from brokerage
— cash and custodian clients
— the Stock Exchange and other
clearing houses
— brokers and dealers
Accounts receivable arising from
securities borrowing and lending
— brokers and dealers

Accounts receivable arising from corporate

finance, asset management, financial products,

market making and investments

— corporate clients, investment
funds and others
Accounts receivable arising from

insurance brokerage services

B E BT
-RELAEEP
— B PR R H A A A
~RERRFE

B EEBRYGR

~RERR 5B
TERE BEEE-
TRER  MHLRE
EH KR
—hERP  REEER
Hpt
R AR R B R MR

Less: impairment

R E

e R IE R 2 A

AR BRI PTE A0 R

HREBENT

As at

30 June

2016
RZB—XF
~A=1H
Unaudited
REER
HK$’ 000
TER

As at

31 December

89,662

433,509
1,292,388

69,152

64,283

40

1 949,034
(16915)

1932119
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13.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(@)  Analysis of accounts receivable (continued)

The movements in the impairment allowance on accounts receivable are as

PR (%)

(@) ERREHD(E)

JRUGRRERBEZEDINT -

follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —“T-hfF
Unaudited Audited
REEY RERZ
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
TR TAT
At | January n—HA—H 16,915 11,580
Impairment charged to profit or B/ FNE ABRRE
loss during the period/year 14 5,626
Impairment reversed to profit or B/ FRERZBEHRE
loss during the period/year — (291)
Exchange difference bE N ERE 5 —
At 30 June 2016/31 December 2015 R-Z—REXB=tH/
—E-AFFT-A=1—H 16,934 16915
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3.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b)

T 1 3 7% A R

13. BWHE(E)

Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired (b)  BERIEHE N R E N ERFE
Accounts
Accounts receivable
receivable from
Accounts from the corporate
receivable Stock Accounts clients, Accounts
from cash Exchange  receivable investment  receivable
and  and other from funds and from
custodian clearing  brokers and others insurance
clients houses dealers EEF brokerage
Rk MBRXAR - BLER KREES R
AEERF HttEE  XBE 0 REt LXK Total
BUHE FEURE EBRXE BRRE EBURE @zt
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR TEn TR FExn TR TR
Unaudited REEY
As at 30 June 2016 RZE-R"E/~A=TH
Neither past due norimpared B AREER A RIE 2,03 1112934 1373726 25,741 50 2,554,587
Audited gEQ
As at 31 December 2015 R-F-RF+-A=1-H
Neither past due nor impaired ~ EE R NARE 67790 433509 1361540 57,589 40 1920468
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are neither past due BEARBEATT AR E R EUCR € KT
nor impaired represent unsettled client trades on various securities exchanges ERFPRIBIENTRBERR 5T
transacted on the last two to three business days prior to the period/year end TRAS/ FRASERE=EE
date. No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an aging EHRALEENTER ST RA
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these accounts - MREZRA  ENZERE
receivable. WFIBRME - Rk T g1R
HENMEE WHERERRSD
il
HHEZLXBEBRERERA A 67
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3.

68

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(©

13. EWFHER(E)

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired () EERHEXRRENERRE
Accounts
Accounts receivable
receivable from
Accounts from the corporate
receivable Stock Accounts clients, Accounts
from cash Exchange receivable  investment receivable
and and other from funds and from
custodian clearing  brokers and others insurance
clients houses dealers HEEF brokerage
RER BIAR BER REEE: RRBREY
AERF Htt&EEMR R5H REft % Total
EhsE  ERHE  ERHE  BURE EURE @zt
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Unaudited AEER
As at 30 June 2016 RZE-~E A=Z1H
Past due less than 6 months B E37< 18 A AR 1,289 - — — — 1,289
Pastdue 6to [2months  BHIRET AR — — — 1,056 — 1,056
1,289 — — 1,056 — 2,345
Audited REQ
Asat3| December 2015~ RZZ—H%F
+ZA=+-AH
Past due less than 6 months %1 B8 7S A LA 8,183 — — 3399 — 11,582
Past due 6 to 12 months B E+=EA - - - 6l - 6l
8,183 — - 3460 - [1,643
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(©

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (continued)

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past due but
not impaired represent client trades on various securities exchanges which
are unsettled beyond the settlement date. When the cash and custodian
clients fail to settle on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to
force-sell the collateral underlying the securities transactions. The outstanding
accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients as at 30 June 2016 and
31 December 2015 are considered past due but not impaired after taking
into consideration the recoverability from the collateral. The collateral held

against these receivables is publicly traded securities.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients, investment funds and others
which are past due but not impaired represent receivables arising from
asset management, corporate finance, investment holding and market
making which have not yet been settled by clients after the Group’s normal
credit period. The outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients,
investment funds and others as at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015
were considered not to be impaired as the credit rating and reputation of

the trade counterparties were sound.

T 1 3 7% A R

13. EWFHEE)

(©)

EABERRENEYRREE)

EASMERRERIRE LAER
PHBERTRESR 5 METR
HERRRNDABENEPR S
BREHIE - —BERE NEEEP
AENEERBENTE  ~&E
RAREH L EREFIHREN
HAm - BEREF AR R
& N-T-REAA=TRRZ
E-RETA=T—HNKRER
YR REEEPRBREE A
EBHERAE - ZFRBTER
AHNERR AR AREENES -

EBHERAENEREERS
REEGFAREMERPRAL
B —RIEE R R R EE BT
HELBEERE BXRE -
RERBRET) R-F—RF
ANAZTBRZE-RF+ZA
—t-BREERREREP &
BESTERAMBPRIERAE
RRAAXHHFARBERFRL
BE

il

n)

BHRELZEREEERAR 69
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 13, BEWHEE)
(d)  Impaired accounts receivable d) BHEEKRE
Accounts
Accounts receivable
receivable from
Accounts from the Accounts corporate
receivable Stock receivable clients, Accounts
from cash Exchange from  investment receivable
and and other brokers funds and from
custodian clearing and others insurance
clients houses dealers HEEF brokerage

RER  MRAR BLk REE: RREL
HEEF RtEEM RE® Rt S Total
EWHE ERE  EBRRE  BURE BUNE At
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Unaudited RIBER

As at 30 June 2016 RZE-~E A=Z1H

Impaired accounts receivable & BB FE MR 13,708 — — 3234 16,942

Less: impaiment A RE (13,700) = = (3.234) = (16,934)
8 - - - — 8

Audited BER

Asat3| December 2015 RZF—HF

+-A=1+-8

Impaired accounts receivable BB EEMFRTE 13,689 - - 3234 - 16923

Less: impairment B RE (13681) — — (3234) (16915)
8 — — — 8

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered impaired @ EEE QAL E R - ER P REIRE
when clients fail to settle according to settlement terms, after taking into HEERTETEER  BRHASRIERPR

D=k L=

consideration the recoverability of collateral. HewR ARE -
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14.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 14.

BAFPEFARBNEREE

As at

30 June

2016
RZB-AR%
ARA=TAH
Unaudited
REER
HK$’ 000
TR

Non-current
Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

— Unlisted fund investments (Note (a))

Current

Financial assets held for trading
— Listed equity secunities
— Listed debt securities
— Unlisted debt securities

Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss
— Unlisted fund investments (Note (a))
— Unlisted convertible promissory note

— Financial products (Note (b))

FRE
EERAFEFABRSNEREE

—FEMERRE (M ()

— 3 FHESRE (@)
S LHTRRERE
— S BERHE b)

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BONFEFABEN SR EERR

As at

31 December
2015
R-_Z—-1F
+=A=+-H
Audited

e
HK$'000

TR

120,141

331,335
1,331,445
107,344

154,944
152,756
2,429,123

4,506,947

4,627,088
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14.

72

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

Notes:

(@

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital appreciation and
investment income. The interests held by the Group are in the form of participating
shares which provide the Group with the share of returns from the investment funds,
but not any decision making power nor any voting right. Given that the Group only
held the beneficial interests without holding any voting right or substantial decision
making power as principal, these investments are classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss.

The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity investments,
listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted equity investments
and derivatives. Part of the fair value in financial products included cash collaterals
HK$1,027.7 million (2015: Nil) placed with counterparties.

The financial products acquired by the Group are primarily driven by customers’
investment needs and used as hedging instruments for structured notes issued under
the MTN Programme (Note [9) or derivative instruments acquired by customers
(Note 15 and 20). As a result, the variable return of these financial products is not

significant.
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BRAVEFARENEREE(H)

(i)

REBERBERAAGHREASUER
BRBERRERAN - REEUZR
FAREED ERAKEARNIER
BESMEER  BLETMRKE
ABFRE - ERNAGEESAERE
amEEEARREINZEARE
RRRHE  ZFERENBERRATE
AABSENEREE -

AEERENSRERBRELTRA
BE  LMEBRE FLTESK
B FLEmRARERTAETR -
BHremERRATERER LKA
L0077 BEBAL(ZE—RE : T)o

AREZEFPEERE AXEBATH
SRR TAEBUEZEME 9K
BEFATATE TR I5%20)
MZEeRERRIEARPERENY
BIR BUZECRERZTED
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15.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as
assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded
gross, is the amount of a derivative’s index and is the basis upon which changes in
the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of

transactions outstanding at the period/year end and are not indicative of market risk or

credit risk.

As at 30 June 2016 R-ZE—-X"EXA=1AH
Cross currency swaps RX BB

Interest rate swaps Fil & 4= 59

Foreign exchange forwards HNE IR HA

Index futures BHHE

Options HRtE

fTEERMIA

TREJCHREERABNITESR
TANATFEEREAREE - facik
MEZSRARATEEENEE ¥
RITETABENEZNEE - BR
SERANTE/ FRRTANRHE -
MARMHARMHEERRMNER -

Fair value

A¥ME

Notional

amount Assets Liabilities
R BE afE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T TER
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I5.

74

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

5. fT£&£BIE(E)

Fair value
NE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
HEEH BE 8
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET TAET
As at 31 December 2015 R-E—HE+-_A=1+—H
Cross currency swaps RN G 577,730 19,359 (20,163)
Interest rate swaps &= 5 1,049,96 567 —
Foreign exchange forwards N 3R HA 1,280,382 4891 (9,603)
Index futures EHHE 27,727 135 —
2,935,800 24952 (29.766)

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA")
master netting agreements or similar agreements with substantially all of its derivative
counterparties. Where legally enforceable, these master netting agreements give the
Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with the same counterparty.
As at 30 June 2016, amounts of cash collateral of HK$137.5 million and HK$30. 1 million
were paid to and received from respective counterparties (2015: HK$48.4 million and
HK$20.8 million), which were included in “accounts receivable and accounts payable

arising from brokerage — brokers and dealers” in notes 13 and 17 respectively.
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RECEIVABLE FROM REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises when the securities are
bought by the Group with a concurrent agreement to resell at a specified later date
and price. These securities are not recognised in the Group's consolidated statement
of financial position as the counterparty retains substantially all risks and returns of the
securities. The amount paid by the Group is recognised as receivable. In the event of
default by the counterparty, the Group has the right to sell the underlying securities for

settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 30 June 2016, the outstanding amount paid for the reverse repurchase agreements
was HK$167,210,000 (2015: HK$509,695,000) and was recognised as receivable from

reverse repurchase agreements.

The fair value of listed debt securities received as collateral for the outstanding

receivable was HK$ 165,058,000 (2015: HK$505,243,000).

EREEERE]
‘.

I3 8 1 = P I R OR

EAKEBRERESETRE L AR
%ME%E%&H%&F@E% & 550
EERALEHZERFR - ZFE

WERAEE LGS BRRKRPER -
RRRX ST RBLSEFNBAHED
Rk R ER  AEESNORBER R
YA WXHTED  AREHAE

HEREE S AEEREBHRYGR -
RIZE-REXA=ZTHE fREEE

BEI MR RLEBEFRE R 16721000048

T(ZZE—AR%F 509695000/ 7T ) * I
W B I e [0 BE 175 a3 e U 30OE -

EUWBEAREBENZEERRN £
MEBESFLTER 16505800087 =

T—TE :505243,00087T)

F&%‘fﬂﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ&’ A

e L/




NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 17. ENFRE
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015

RIE-—RE R-Z—HF
~A=+HR +=ZA=t+-H

Unaudited Audited
RBEY RERZ
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
T TAT
Accounts payable arising from brokerage HERES Y AN
— clients -&P 15,343,387 15214731
~ brokers and dealers —-BRERRE 543315 757,770
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses —BRAREMEER 443,376 29,760
Accounts payable arising from BHEEERENHE
securities borrowing and lending 410,747 542,502
Accounts payable arising from corporate finance, TERE AEER o@ER-
asset management, financial products, B R B E BN A
market making and investments 42,226 1,673,295
Accounts payable arising from RIS E BT
insurance brokerage services 3,298 254
16,786,349 18218312
The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except for certain AEBMENFEARERBER  EAQ
accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits received from clients for AARPRESERBRETETEER
their trading activities in the normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over BUMEFPHRESMEN TEPHK
the required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand. REBHATREENEEA

REKRBREEP -

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within one business day. AEBENE | ELEBNERKEERE
No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, the aging analysis does ERENR - AEBUERERR T
not give additional value in view of the nature of these businesses. RAREEZRIZEEZBNME - K

RAMTERABIMEE -

76 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
2016 Interim Report



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued) 7. BEAREE)
Accounts payable to clients also included those payables placed in trust accounts with RZE-—R"EXA=1TH ENTEP
authorised finandial institutions of HK$ 15,147 million (31 December 2015: HK$14,663 HREMEEFTRRRITEREEET
million), and with Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited and other BEEISI47BEBT(ZE-—RF+Z
futures dealers totalling HK$350 million as at 30 June 2016 respectively (31 December A=+—B: 146638 8%L) - URF
2015: HK$317 million). BREBHEEEARLAIRAMEE
RHBNAHI0VAEEL(ZT—0F
+ZA=+—R:3I7EBHERT) -
Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services included those payables RZZE-RFAA=TH RRELR
in trust accounts with authorised institutions of HK$3.3 million as at 30 June 2016 (31 BREANENFBERERERERT
Decerber 2015: HK$0.2 million). REHMENKEIZEEEL(ZE-1
F+-A=+—H: 02EEET) -
Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing except for the accounts payable to clients. PRENE PN - ENFIRE R
BANK BORROWINGS 18. RITERK
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
R-Z2-"F R-ZT-10F
AREtH  +ZA=1-H
Unaudited Audited
BN e
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TR TR
Non-current e
Unsecured bank borrowings EIPIRITIEN 2,100,000 3,090,000
Current ik
Unsecured bank borrowings EHERBITER 8,379,278 4,765,662
Total bank borrowings RITET B 10,479,278 7,855,662
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18.

78

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 18. MITER(E)
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
R-E-~F RZZE—AF
AA=t+H +ZA=1+—H
Unaudited Audited
RBER &
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERT FAET

Denominated in: SHEEE

HKD AT 8,400,000 6,600,000
usD ETT 2,079,278 1,255,662
Total bank borrowings RITEREE 10,479,278 7,855,662

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered Rate plus an

interest spread.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate to their fair values as the impact

on discounting is not significant.
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19. DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE 19 ERITEEES

At amortised cost: TR AR -
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes (Note (a)) I EmEE AR SRR (M (a)

Designated as at fair value through profit or loss: EERATEFARS
Structured notes issued in relation to BETHERERIEBZ
financial products (Note (b)) ERUEE(MEO))

Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes denominated in: 12 T 71| & ¥ 5 (EH) JE T EIK

RHRE

HKD BT

UsD X

RMB ARE

Structured notes issued in relation to ETIIEBIENEEITH

financial products denominated in: SREMBB EBIERE -
HKD BT

usD e

RMB AR

As at

30 June

2016
RZB-AR%
ARA=TAH
Unaudited
REER
HK$’ 000
TR

As at

31 December
2015
R-_Z—-1F
+ZA=+—H
Audited

e
HK$'000

TR

429,040

1,929,048

2,358,088

156,000
155,020
118,020

429,040

112518
654,080
1,162,450

1929,048

2,358,088
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19.

80

DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE (continued)

@

The outstanding balance of HK$276.5 million as at 30 June 2016 (31 December
2015: HK$429.0 million) stated at amortised cost represented unsecured unlisted
notes issued by the Company under the Medium Term Note Programme (the
“"MTN Programme™). As at 30 June 2016, the debt securities in issue bore fixed
interest rate ranging from 0.9% to 4.1% (31 December 2015: 0.3% to 4.1%). The
carrying amounts of the debt securities in issue approximate to their fair values

as the impact on discounting is not significant.

As at 30 June 2016, the outstanding balance of HK$3,574.1 million (31
December 2015: HK$1,929.0 million) represented unlisted structured notes
which arose from selling structured products generally under the MTN
Programme with underlying investment related to listed equity investments and
unlisted fund investments. The risk of economic exposure on these structured
products is primarily hedged by using the financial products classified as financial

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (Note 14).

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or any other breaches with

respect to their liabilities for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).
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20.

21.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Tp 31 5 s R B s

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 20. EAFEFARSENEHAE
LOSS
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
RZB-—RF B\A:%E—ﬁi
ARA=tR TZA=t—
Unaudited Audited
REER KES P
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
T TAT
Financial liabilities held for trading: HIEEBENERAE
— Listed equity securities — ERAES 65 97
~ Listed debt securities - L HEHES 608,761 505,243
Financial liabilities designated as at fair EERATERA
value through profit or loss BRMNEHAE
~ Financial products (Note) —emEm(fE) 2,054,934 —
2,663,760 505,340
Note: Part of the fair value in financial products included cash collaterals of HK$1,897.3 Mz : eRERZATEREREFHEM
million (2015: Nil) received from counterparty. MReERRIS7IBEBTL(ZE
—hF:F)e
OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 2. EBHENER
The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the securities are sold by the AEERBEOERALERS  EFR
Group with a concurrent agreement to repurchase at a specified later date and price. Bal U —HRENRETE%ZA Hﬁ&{ﬁ
These securities are not derecognised from the Group's consolidated statement of BEEES ZEFFFLERAREELER
financial position and are retained within the appropriate financial assets classification. BUBRRARPRRER  UREEE
The amount received by the Group is recognised as liabilities as the Group retains EeREESEAN - ARBWRHRIE
substantially all risks and retumns of the securities. HRARA T,\ REARASERBESRHN
BARA R K@ -
As at 30 June 2016, the outstanding amount received from repurchase agreements AZE-RFERA=TH stEBEHE

was HK$648,194,000 (31 December 2015: HK$400,517,000) and was recognised as

obligations under repurchase agreements.

The following table specifies the amount included within financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss subject to repurchase agreements at the year end (Note [4).

W BR B K 4575 BRE A 648,194,000 4 7T (=
E-RF+=-HA=+—H 1400517000
B THERALBERENEE -

TREFNERZATFEFABENSE
BEERPXOERZREHTEK T
14) o

B %= F % B R

n)

=l /NC] 81
2016¢'§ﬁ$ﬁ%
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21.

22.

82

OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS (continued)

2. BEEBEOEEE)

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015

RIE-—RE R-Z—HF
~A=+HR +=ZA=t+-H

Unaudited Audited
RBEY RERZ
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
T TAT
Financial assets held for trading HEEE E’]@Fﬂﬁ?
— Listed debt securities - L EHE 103,837 147,749
Financial assets designated as at fair value EERATEFARR
through profit or loss TREE
— Financial products —EREmM 889,183 426,448
993,020 574,197

OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENT

On |5 June 2016, the Company issued US$300 million subordinated perpetual
securities (the “Perpetual Securities”) with an initial distribution rate of 4.5% per annum.
Distributions will be paid semi-annually in arrear and the first distribution date will
fall on 30 October 2016. The Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer any
distribution. The Perpetual Securities do not have maturity date and are only callable
at the Company's discretion on 30 April 2019 or on any distribution payment date
after 30 April 2019. After 30 April 2019, the distribution rate will be reset to 3 year US
Swap rate plus 8% per annum. The Perpetual Securities constitute direct, unconditional,
subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company and are classified as equity
instruments and recorded as equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The amount as at 30 June 2016 included the accrued distribution payment.
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23.

24.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

T 1 3 7% A R

SHARE CAPITAL 3. KA
Number of
issued and Share capital
fully paid shares R
ERITR HK$’000
BERHEE TER
At | January 2015 RZE—h%¥—H—H 2,273876,128 5,852,194
Shares issued upon bonus issue (Note) AR BT EITRRG () 4,619,758,070 —
Shares issued upon exercise of share FRE R 8 T BRI T
options under the share option METE AR (15 24)
scheme (Note 24) 40,674,003 152,168
At 31 December 2015 and | January 2016 RZE—RF+-_A=+—8BRk
—E-R"¥-HA—H 6,934,308,201 6,004,362
Shares issued upon exercise of EEE ARt &) T H BRI T
share options under the share M THRR D (FiEE24)
option scheme (Note 24) 15,965,212 25,894
At 30 June 2016 RZE—R"FAA=ZTH 6,950,273,413 6,030,256
Note: B

On 12 June 2015, the Directors proposed to make a bonus issue of two new shares for each

existing share held by shareholders whose names were on the Register of Members on 30

June 2015. The bonus issue was completed and 4,619,758,070 bonus shares were issued on

9 July 2015.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

24.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the

purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members. The Board

of Directors has the discretion to grant share options to employees and directors of

any members of the Group, including independent non-executive directors. The Share

Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended, will remain in force for |0 years from that date (i.e, 18 June 2020).
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T-RFAA=THRAIRERMERERR
BEBRBAARN TEEMBRIBRAETALR
BT - ARETAZ-—RFLANBAER
2174619758070 B AT 3 ©

BREMRE

AR BROA R R AT ST B At
81) UAHBRE  RERABARE
T EZgdRERLBRETASHE
ERXERREERES(REBLIEH
TE%) BRESER_FT-FTFXA
TABER BERTRERER @ 5t
SR ZER I0F(Z-2-2F <A
TNR)BEK -

n)

BEELZBEEERBERRQ A 83
2016 # Hi 3 &



NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Tp 31 5 s R B st

24.

84

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
(ie. 164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within any |2-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time (i.e. 16,400,000 shares).
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month

period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$! in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and ends

on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on
the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of

offer.

The expected volatility and the expected dividend yield reflect the assumptions that the
historical volatility and the historical dividend yield, respectively, are indicative of future

trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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24.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

For the period ended 30 June 2016, 503,957 share options with an exercise price of
HKS$1.264 each lapsed (2015: 1,007,916 and 2,955 share options with an exercise price
of HK$1.264 each lapsed and forfeited respectively) prior to the vesting date as a result

of staff resignation.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders” meetings.

15,965,212 share options were exercised during the period ended 30 June 2016 (2015:
36,002,907 share options), resulting in the issue of 15,965,212 shares (2015: 36,002,907
shares) for a total cash consideration of HK$20,180,000 (2015: HK$105,567,000).
An amount of HK$5,714,000 (2015: HK$39,753,000) was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share capital account upon the exercise of the share options. The
weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during

the period was HK$2.35 per share (2015: HK$10.35).

For the period ended 30 June 2016, the Group has recognised an equity-settled share-
based compensation expense of HK$8,921,590 for the share options under the Share

Option Scheme in profit or loss (2015: HK$8,569,000).

24.
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SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued) 24.

Movements of share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme during the

period/year are as follows:

BREREE)
MR,/ FRBREL ST W RTRER
ENEFOT

2016 2015
ZB-RF —T-0#%
Weighted Weighted
average average

exercise price

exercise price

L S InEF
TEE Number idE Number
HK$ per share of options  HKS$ per share of options
SRET BREZEA BRET  BREHA
At | January n—A—H 1.585 133,267,107 331 77,819,265
Granted during the year FRFEH — — 14.56 4,500,000
Adjusted during the year FRHE - - 1567 92632716
Forfeited during the year FRRN = = 1264 (2.955)
Lapsed during the year FRXH 1.264 (503,957) 1264 (1,007916)
Exercised during the year ERITE 1264 (15,965,212) 2724 (40674,003)
At 30 June 2016/ R-E—REXA=TH/
3| December 2015 “E-AF+=-A=t—H 1.63 116,797,938 1,585 133,267,107

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had |16,797,938 (2015: 133,267,107)
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 1.68% (31 December 2015: 1.92%) of the Company's shares in issue as
at 30 June 2016. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of | 16,797,938 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$190,391,576 (before
issuance expenses). The option periods of the share options are from 24 April 2012 to
9 June 2021, from 10 January 2014 to 9 January 2024 and from || June 2015 to 10 June
2025.
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25.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SHARE AWARD RESERVE

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be
awarded to selected employees (including directors) of any members of the Group (the
“Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the
Share Award Scheme. The share award scheme became effective on the adoption date
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from

that date, i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme is limited
to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (i.e.
164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company

as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include
service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of Directors of the
Company at the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares of the
Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant

Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award Scheme shall

be exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain from voting.
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SHARE AWARD RESERVE (continued) 25.

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 30 June 2016 are set out

R ERRE(E)
RZE—RERAAZTHRERABGE

below: HRER DA BRI T

Date of Number of Number of Number of Number of

Awarded Average fair Awarded Awarded Awarded Awarded

Shares granted value per share  Shares granted Shares vested Shares lapsed ~ Shares unvested  Vesting dates

RHER BRYY RHZ® EEERRB BAMRE AERRE

R4 B DFEGER) ROMEE ggiol 4= R HEE ROHOEE HEAH

9/4/2014 133 28,218,000 (18,894,000) (450,000) 8874000  30/11/2016

15/412015 3.29 34,653,000 (12,354,000) (399,000) 10977000  30/11/2016
10923000  30/11/2017

18/4/2016 279 27,987,000 — (230,000) 9,025000  30/11/2016

8,982,000 30/1172017
8,951,000 30/11/2018
58,000 4/1012016
58000 411012017
58,000 4/1012018
208,000 31/3/2017
208,000 31/3/2018
209,000 31/3/2019

The Group has recognised a share-based compensation expense of HK$32,526,000
for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme in profit or loss (2015:
HK$27,760,000). 9,684,000 Awarded Shares have been either transferred to the
grantees or sold in accordance with their instructions at no cost (2015: Nil) for the
period ended 30 June 2016.

659,000 awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a result of staff resignations
for the period ended 30 June 2016 (2015: 108,000 Awarded Shares).

After considering the number of shares which were granted in prior years, as at 30 June
2016, the total number of the Awarded Shares that can be awarded was 117,737,000
which represents appropriately 1.69% of the Company's shares in issue as at 30 June
2016.
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26. SHARES HELD UNDER THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME 26. BRERGEBTEFEENORE

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the period/year are

R,/ FRRE R RE B A Rk

as follows: BN
2016 2015
- —T-hF
Number of Number of
HK$’ 000 shares HK$ 000 shares
TET RIDEE FET Bt g B
At | January R—H—H 102,897 24,381,800
Purchased during the period/year B/ FHNRE 119,897 10,410,000
Adjustment for bonus issue PALREITRE — 62,303,600
Vested and transferred out B/ FRNREREL
during the period/year (23,151 (20,166,000)
At 30 June/31 December RAA=+H/
+-A=+—~H 199,643 76,929,400

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the trustee acquired 1,423,000 ordinary
shares (31 December 2015: 10,410,000 ordinary shares) of the Company for the
Share Award Scheme through purchases in the open market at a total cost, including

related transaction costs of approximately HK$3,715,000 (31 December 2015:

HK$119,897,000).

BEZZ—R"E~A=THLEAER -
REABRBRO R EANBKK(BE
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease payables under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

27.

REREAR EXAERAEMAR

RIE-RERNAZTH AEERE
TAREEEREE TR HRAZ
AREMNRERERRAEQNT

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

R-B-RE R-T—AF

AA=tR fTZA=t-H

Unaudited Audited

REER KE2 P

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

TR TRT

Within one year —ER 4,864 4841
In the second to fifth years, inclusive “EhF(BREEEME) 5,868 7989
10,732 12,830

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and renovation of premises of
approximately HK$6,065,000 which were contracted but not provided for as at 30 June
2016 (31 December 2015: HK$ 1,364,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO, takeover and merger
activities and financial obligations to loan facilities granted to customers. As at 30 June
2016, the underwriting and financial obligations were approximately HK$458 million and
HK$ 1,375 million respectively (31 December 2015: HK$ 1,383 million and HK$ 1,272

million).
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28.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SECURITIES BORROWING AND LENDING

In the normal course of business, the Group may enter into securities borrowing and
lending arrangements with financial institutions and the Group's customers. As at 30
June 2016, the Group borrowed equity securities of HK$43,971,000 (31 December
2015: HK$57,653,000) from financial institutions and set aside equity securities of
HK$334,494,000 (31 December 2015: HK$259,144,000) pledged by margin clients
for such lending arrangements to the customers. Cash collateral of HK$4 10,747,000
(31 December 2015: HK$542,502,000) was received from the customers while
HK$44,793,000 (31 December 2015: HK$62,335,000) was placed with the financial

institutions.

The Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and lending
transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However, under the securities
borrowing and lending arrangement, the cash collateral received and cash collateral
placed are included in the accounts payable to client and accounts receivable from
brokers and dealers respectively. The Group is principally liable to repay the borrowed

securities in case of any default by the customers.

In the normal course of investment holding and market making business, the group may
also enter into securities borrowing and lending arrangements with financial institutions.
As at 30 June 2016, the Group borrowed exchange-traded funds of HK$3,246,000
(31 December 2015: HK$6,492,000) from a financial institution for the market making
activities and placed HK$3,408,000 (31 December 2015: HK$6,817,000) with the

financial instituitions as cash collateral.
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29. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 9. KETHRERIAE
For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=TRHLAEA
2016 2015
- —“T-IfF
Unaudited Unaudited
RIEEY AEEZ
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
Fib% FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHMERENE
Profit before income tax B PSR AR 639,538 695,021
Adjustments for: L
Depreciation nE 16,982 13,653
Share-based compensation expenses AR B AR 5 BN 5 41,447 36,329
Impairment charge on loans and BYEFERRBTUAAE — 50
advances to customers
Impairment charge on accounts receivable PRI RE 14 4,797
697,981 749,850
Increase in other assets HihEELM 45) (397)
Increase in loans and advances to customers BTEPERRBFRLM (2,138511) 6011,713)
Increase in accounts receivable JEUSRIEE N (624,840) (1,698,764)
Foreign exchange difference on provision of JE ISR OR LB B i O SN 2 58
impairment on accounts receivable 5 -
Decrease in receivable from reverse 2 17 121 5 175 2 FE W B L
repurchase agreement 342,485 —
Decrease in obligations under (o188 A O R SR
repurchase agreement 247,677 —
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits BRRE - BE KEMEKRE
and other receivables wL,/(38h0) 90,340 (172,322)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BATES AR
through profit or loss EREEEM (4,124,946) (424811
Decrease in derivative financial instruments TERBIARMD 50,499 [
Decrease in financial liabilities at fair value BRATESFABRNESREERD
through profit or loss 2,158,420 —
Increase in time deposits with original maturity more =18 A & B g i
than three months (6,207) —
Increase in dlient trust bank balances KPS RITARIEG (484,129) (4755,998)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable FERFECRD),/Em (1,431,963) 5,727,109
(Decrease)/increase in other payables E \ﬁﬂﬂgﬁ I8 R st
and accrued liabilities ECRD),/Em (81,626) 32,205
92 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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29. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

29.

O

KeZDHEREREE)
For the six months ended 30 June

BEAAZTHLEAER

2016
—E-AF
Unaudited
REE
HK$’ 000
TR

Cash used in operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid

BEXBMARE
ENEBFEN

Net cash flows used in operating activities

REEPNRTRLFER

Cash flows from operating activities included:

— Interest received
— Interest paid

— Dividend received

KergmRenERR:
—BKFE
—EfFE
—BEHERE

2015
—T-hF
Unaudited
REER
HK$'000
TR

(6,554,830)

(6,554830)

511224
(86,543)
1043




NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

T3] S 75 Y B e

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)  In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the unaudited

interim financial information, the Group had the following material transactions

with related parties during the period:

30. BAEARS
BAEEZP T BEENE i

@

B 5 R AT

b REERHY

NERBETETATERRS

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAR=THILAEA

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-h#F
Unaudited Unaudited
RSEY REEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
Bzt T TR
Commission expenses to the T RAERA FIE
ultimate holding company Aem% (i) (1,283) (5,104
Commission expenses to the ultimate holding BEAA—KR P /MER A
company for trading in RMB Qualified RUMARESEIRIMERE
Foreign Institutional Investors (RQFII) TEE RQANEFAR S
account set up by an intermediate X FREZRR AR
holding company iiEaba (if) (99) —
Professional and consultancy fees paid to IRNTREMBARMEE
a fellow subsidiary NERE (ii) (7,320 (7.320)
Management fee income and performance B AR A2 A B AR E 12
fee income of a private fund managed bya ~ REIZHIBARIREMNLE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company EeWBAERERA
and invested by a fellow subsidiary RERERA () 616 6,682
Total fees received from a private fund BALEESKMAERAHE (v) 95 489
Commission income of a public fund BERZMBRRIEENAS
managed by a fellow subsidiary EeEHAREA (vi) 95 327
Commission income from an intermediate BN ER A BURERE
holding company GEAUN (vii) 767 2,170
Commission income from the ultimate B SRR A B E)
holding company GGEALUN (viii) 18 251
Commission income from the immediate BEBEER A FERE
holding company G ON (ix) = 38
Management fee income from a public fund B ANAEI 2 E M B A F]
managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of BERRPMTERAR
the Company and invested by the RENLEERIE
intermediate holding company EEEWA (x) 2,456 3,689
94 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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30.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

T 1 3 7% A R

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30 BEARZ(E)
(a)  (continued) @ (&)
For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=1THILAEA
2016 2015
—B-AF —“ZT-IfF
Unaudited Unaudited
REER REEZ
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
P aE TR TET
Management fee income from public funds B ANAE 2 &I B A F]
managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary BERRPTERAR
of the Company and controlled by an BHNAEER I
intermediate holding company HERERA (i) 700 725
Management fee and handling fee income BARAN K2 ENBRAR
from a public fund managed by a BERR—KRAZMEL A
wholly-owned subsidiary of the AR REE S UER
Company and invested by ERBRFEEBRA
a fellow subsidiary (xii) 327 422
Commission income from an investment fund 5% & &2 WEF & A (xiii) 7 24
Professional fee and consultancy fee paidto X2 1 TP ERAIER A A M F %
the ultimate holding company &k (xiv) (361) (108)
Commission income from funds managed by B & & F A 7] B EEHY)
the ultimate holding company E2WEMAREA (xv) 2,419 —
Equity distribution on Perpetual Security
payable to the intermediate FER T AN R A BIH
holding company KEE DK (xvi) 1,821 —

Notes: PifaE -

() The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were calculated iy ZIRNFEREERRATNEESH
based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in the Cooperation Y REARAKN—RE2EN
Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. BLARZELNEHETIAN

RHEED R
(i) The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were calculated iy ZNFEREERAANHMEHE

based on the percentage of the transaction value through RQFII account as
stated in the Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company.
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30.

96

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

(v)

(vii)

(viil)

Professional and consultancy fees paid to a fellow subsidiary for the provision
of capital market information were charged at HK$7,320,000 for the period
ended 30 June 2016 (2015: HK$7,320,000).

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by
a fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.5% per annum of the net asset value at
the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in the

net asset value for the period ended 30 June 2016.

Total fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (iv) above
included commission income which was based on 0.25% of the transaction

value.

Commission income received from a public fund managed by a fellow
subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Commission income received from the intermediate holding company was
based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-

owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Commission income received from the ultimate holding company was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

Commission income received from the immediate holding company was
based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income received from the public fund managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by the intermediate
holding company was charged based on percentage prescribed in the

investment management agreement for the period ended 30 June 201 6.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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30.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

(xii)

(i)

(xiv)

The management fee income received from three public funds (30 June 2015:
three) managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and controlled
by the intermediate holding company was based on the percentage prescribed
in the respective investment management agreements for the period ended
30 June 2016.

The management fee income and holding fee income received from a public
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested
by a fellow subsidiary was based on percentage prescribed in the investment

management agreement for the period ended 30 June 2016.

Commission income received from the investment fund mentioned in note (xii)
above was based on a percentage stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Professional fee and consultancy fee paid to the ultimate holding company
were based on the usage of research reports and financial advisory services
provided to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally

engaged in the provision of futures dealing and broking services.

Commission income received from funds managed by the ultimate holding
company was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Included in Group's balance of Perpetual Securities was an amount of
HK$971,125,000 as at 30 June 2016 (31 December 2015: Nil) owned by
an intermediate holding company. The accrued distribution payable to the
intermediate holding company was HK$1,821,000 (31 December 2015: Nil).
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30.

98

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Included in the Group's accounts payable was a broker payable due to
the ultimate holding company of HK$24,537,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$99,321,000) arising from the dealing in securities as at 30 June 2016. The
balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under

the relevant market practices

Included in the Group's accounts receivables were amounts due from funds
managed by the ultimate holding company of HK$5,531,000 (31 December
2015: Nil) arising from dealing in securities as at 30 June 2016. The credit
terms provided to funds managed by the ultimate holding company are
consistent with the practice of securities dealing industry. The balance is
unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under relevant

market practices.

Included in the Group's accounts payable were amounts due to funds
managed by the ultimate holding company of HK$ 165,353,000 (31 December
2015: Nil) arising from the dealing in securities as at 30 June 2016. The
balance is unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under

the relevant market practice.

Included the Group's accounts payable were amounts due to intermediate
holding company of HK$14,401,000 (31 December 2015: Nil) arising from
dealing in futures as at 30 June 2016. The balance is unsecured, interest-free

and payable on demand.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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30.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(o)

(sl

(xxit)

Included in the Group's accounts receivable was a broker receivable due
from the ultimate holding company of HK$31,082,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$251,285,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 30 June 2016. The
credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company are consistent with the
practice of the securities dealing industry. The balance is unsecured, interest-

free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable were management fee and performance
fee receivables due from investment funds managed by the Group mentioned
above of HK$648,000 (31 December 2015: HK$808,000) arising from the
provision of asset management services as at 30 June 2016. The balances are

unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in arrears.

Included in the client trust bank balance was a deposit from an intermediate
holding company which was HK$137,950,000 as at 30 June 2016 (31
December 2015: HK$48,816,000).

The Group's ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan, is subject to the control

of the PRC Government which also controls a significant portion of assets

and entities in the PRC (collectively referred to as “state-owned enterprises”).

Therefore, transactions with state-owned enterprises are regarded as related

party transactions.
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30.

100

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@

(continued)

The majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group were entered
into with state-owned banks. In addition, the Group entered into transactions
with state-owned enterprises that relates to the Group's normal business
activities, including but not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance
business, asset management business, lending business and investment holding.
These transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business at an
arm’s length and under the normal commercial terms and conditions as to those
that would have been entered into with non-state-owned enterprises, which

were not considered as individually significant in accordance with HKAS 24.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

30.
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For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THLAEA

2016 2015

—E-RE —“T-IfF

Unaudited Unaudited

REER AEER

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FER TET

Salaries and allowances & MoEBL 8,152 6,657
Equity-settled share based payment PR RERE R A E MRS 17,563 15319
Pension scheme contributions BREE AR 33 36
25,748 22,012
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31

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the Continuous Net

Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and trade payables with HKSCC and it

intends to settle on a net basis as accounts receivable from or accounts payable to the

Stock Exchange. The net amount of CNS money obligations receivable or payable with

HKSCC and the guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do not meet the critenia for offsetting

in the financial statements and the Group does not intend to settle the balances on a

net basis.

31

Gross amount

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

T 1 3 7% A R

EHECREERSRAR

REBE B AHA SRR TN K HE
BEREGENREFRRIR(BEFER
W) AR SRR - WHRHRFE
ERERERIENBITERGEE
HEBHEENREFRRINEIRLE
NERNFERFREEGENRERLS
TARFERIAHREANEHOFLE - K
SETRFREELERRAR -

of recognised

Gross financial Net amount Related

amount of (assets)/ of financial ~ amounts not

recognised liabilities liabilities set off in

financial offset in reflectedin  the statement

assets/ the financial the financial of financial

(liabilities) statements statements position

BRR  REBER YRR

SREE EHCER REBEER BBRARR
/(8f) LSR(EE) Z2IMeR HHN Net
aE AEEE  ABFE  EELE R
HK$'000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TERL FER

As at 30 June 2016 unaudited RZB-AEXA=TH:
KEEY

CNS money obligation receivable HEFB MK 1,351,486 (1,351,486) - — —
CNS money obligation payable FEFERNENE (1,374,820) 1,351,486 (23,334) - (23,334)

n)
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31.

102

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(continued)

31

Gross amount

EHEREERSRAG(A)

of recognised Net amount Related

Gross amount financial of financial amounts not

of recognised (assets)/ liabilities set offin

financial  liabilities offset reflectedin = the statement

assets/  inthe financial the financial of financial

(liabilties) statements statements position

¥R REBER  RUBER TARR

TRHEE HAHCER IR HBRAR
/(BfE) ¢R(EE) oR A Net
g /afEE  BBFE  BELE #8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TR TET TAT

As at 3| December 2015, audited R-B-RE+-A=+-B £EK

CNS money obligation receivable  Fr & F B R MU MLR 971,846 (802,324) 169,522 - 169,522
CNS money obligation payable BEFERNEMNE (802324) 802324 - - -

The “net amount of financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements",
as set out above, is included in “accounts receivable and accounts payable arising from
brokerage — the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses” in Note 13 and Note 17

respectively.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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32.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Group'’s valuation process

The Level | and Level 2 fair value of financial assets are measured by reference to
quoted market prices and brokers' quotes respectively. For Level 3 fair value, the Group
has engaged an independent valuer to perform the valuation of financial assets for
financial reporting purposes. Such valuation report would be sent to the Accounting
Department and the Audit Committee for discussion at least twice per annum, which is

in line with the Group's reporting dates.

The Accounting Department regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments including broker quotes used to measure the fair values of
financial assets. Changes in Level 2 and Level 3 fair values are analysed for the fair value

movement at each reporting date.
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32.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2016, unaudited

EMIANAVEFNESE)

DYEER

TREAXEESBTANLTERNE

R

BAFEBHEE -

RIB-REXAZTH  REER

Fair value measurement using

RANTRENAVENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB EXT EXEE
TS HE Bx2Y B2Y
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%8 14%) (%824) (834) #at
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FEr FER TER
Financial assets held for trading BEEESRERE
— Listed equity securities — EIRAE S 380,673 — — 380,673
~ Listed debt securities - EmEBES — 2,136,169 — 2,136,169
~ Unlisted debt securities —FLHEBES — 21,048 47,370 68,418
Financial assets designated as at BERRATEFABEN
fair value through profit or loss TREE
~ Unlisted fund investments —FLMEERE — 202,654 182,427 385,081
— Unlisted convertible - EmARRER
promissory note — — 128,378 128,378
— Financial products —EREmM — 4,480,545 1,172,770 5,653,315
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA 37,000 28,932 — 65,932
417,673 6,869,348 1,530,945 8,817,966
104 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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32.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, audited

ERMIANDTERNEE)

AFEER(E)
BAFETEHEE  (B)

R-B-HEF+-A=1t—-0 K&F%

Fair value measurement using

RAATRBOAFEE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR BXA BAEE
MHRE BE2H BE2H
(Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B 18) (B28) (B38%) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Financial assets held for trading HIEEBESREE
— Listed equity securities — ETRARE 5 331,335 — — 331,335
— Listed debt securities - EmEBES — 1,331,445 — 1,331,445
— Unlisted debt securities —FEHERES — 61944 45,400 107,344
Financial assets designated as at EERAFEFABRS
fair value through profit or loss SREE
— Unlisted fund investments —FLEMESRKRE — 154944 120,141 275,085
— Unlisted convertible —JEEMmABREE
promissory note — — 152,756 152,756
— Finandial products —ERER — 2,429,123 — 2,429,123
Derivative financial instruments fTHEemIA — 24,952 — 24,952
331,335 4,002,408 318297 4,652,040
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32.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2016, unaudited

EMIANAVEFNESE)

NHESER(E)
BAFEEBHEE

R-F—

Ry

/\

EAR=TH  KEEH

Fair value measurement using

RANLTBENDFEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
R EXT EXE®
mERE BER2Y BER2Y
(Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B 18) (%28) (834) @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEL  FER FER AR
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEABRS
through profit or loss EREE
— Debt securities in issue —BETREES — (2401,302)  (1,172770)  (3,574,072)
Financial liabilities held for trading HIEEBENERAR
— Listed equity securities — FHRAE S (65) — — (65)
— Listed debt securities — L HEKES — (2,663,695) — (2,663,695)
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMIA (60,269) (60,976) — (121,245)
(60,334) (5,125,973) (1,172,770) (6,359,077)
106 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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32.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, audited

32.

T 1 3 7% A R

ERMIANDVEFER)

NHESER(E)
BAFEEBHEE (B)

R-ZB-AE+ZA=+-HB K&K

Fair value measurement using

FANTRBENAFETE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
EvN| BAEZE
EERT IS MIE B2 BR2Y
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%18 (%28 (B34) @it
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TAT TET TR TR
Financial liabilities at fair value BRTEF A BRE
through profit or loss MemeE
— Debt securities in issue —BETREES — (1,929,048) — (1,929,048)
Financial liabilities held for trading HIEEBENERAR
— Listed equity securities — ERAES 97) — — (97)
— Listed debt securities — L HEKES — (505,243) — (505,243)
Derivative finandial instruments fTHEEMIE — (29,766) — (29.766)
(97) (2,464,057) — (2,464,154)

(@)  Financial instruments in Level |

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on

quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market is regarded

as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,

dealer or broker and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial

assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

@ HIfHEMIA
RRBERMZEENEMIARD
FERERESHRNTSRE
B RREBNTISIEANE S RE
MR HA - RHEHLLIER
Bomg  MaEREARELT
HEETHNERRERTERS -
AEEMBeREEMANTISR
BRAERMERE -
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32.

108

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter) is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs used in the valuation for financial instruments are observable, the financial

instruments are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data,

the financial instrument is included in Level 3.

There was no transfer of fair value measurement between Level | and Level 2

during the six months ended 30 June 2016 and year ended 31 December 2015.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
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32.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2. SMIANAFEIERE)
(continued)
()  Financial instruments in Level 3 () HIREMIA
The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments of financial TRENEZE-Z—REFEA A=
instruments for the period ended 30 June 2016 and the year ended 3| AEHEAR-_FE-—HF+ZA
December 2015. ST—HIEFE F3RERMIA
Level 3 financial assets FIREMEE
For the period ended 30 June 2016, unaudited BE-Z-R"EXA=1HLH
B REEX
Unlisted
convertible
Unlisted debt promissory  Unlisted fund Financial
investments note investments product Total
kEm kLW FLEm
BERE TEREE ESRE ERMER ast
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TR FER TER
At | January 2016 RZE—RF
—A—H 45,400 152,756 120,141 — 318,297
Purchases EE — — — 1,172,770 1,172,770
Accrued interest income  FERTFI B UA 407 1,542 — 1,949
Receipt of interest income  YRERFI 8 UK A (222) (3,092 — — (3.314)
Net gain/(loss) recognised  FAME 2 A TETR M)
in profit or loss Wz (E518)
i 1,785 (22,828) 62,286 — 41,243
RZIE—RF
At 30 June 2016 ~NA=T+H 47,370 128,378 182,427 1,172,770 1,530,945
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32.

110

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

For the year ended 3| December 2015, audited

32. ERMIANAFEFEE)

¢ HIRELMIA(E)
Bz-2-mF+t-A=t+-AL

FE KEX
Unlisted
convertible
Unlisted debt promissory  Unlisted fund Financial
investments note investments product Total
LM LM LM
ERERE ARRRE EeRE EREM Bt
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FAT BT FHEL FAET FAET
At | January 2015 RZZ—A1F
—A—H 86,826 157,191 — — 244017
Purchases BE — — 120,141 — 120,141
Receipt on maturity LG (32,000) — — — (32,000)
Accrued interest income  FERTF BILA 3324 3092 — — 6416
Receipt of interest income BRI 8 U4TA (3224) (1533) — — (4857)
Net loss recognised in RiEa AR
profit or loss EERE (9:426) (5.994) — — (15,420)
At 3l December2015 ~ RMZT—HEF
+-A=1+—8H 45,400 152,756 120,141 — 318297
Level 3 financial liabilities BIRERERE
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
R-E—X%¥ RZZ—H ¢
RA=+R TZA=
Unaudited Audited
RBER RE”
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERT FET
Debt securities in issue ERTEXES
At | January 2016/2015 AZZ—R"EF/ZF-hF—A—H —
Issuance BT 1,172,770 —
At 30 June 2016/31 Decmber 2015 R_E—REXNAZTH/
—“T-A¥+=ZA=1+—H 1,172,770 —
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32.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32. ERMIANAFENEE)

(continued)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) () Z3@EeMIAE)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial TXAEEBITAN TR FA
instruments as at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015: =t+BER-Z—AF+-B=1—
ARENENEZER28ME
As at 30 June 2016 R-ZE-X"EXA=1+AH
Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Average/Range  Sensitivity of fair value to input
fhERH EABERESY /68 ATEHSHNEEE
Unlisted debt investments Binomial pricing Credit spread above risk-free rate 52% 2% increase or decrease in the credit spread above
model the risk-free rate, the fair value would be decreased
by HK$0.I million or increased by HK$0.I million,
respectively
EEmEBRE  ZEATERE PRERBNENEERE 52%  EREERNENEERBEMRREL 2%
RFERDFRD0I BERTIEN0 A
27
Unlisted Convertible Binomial pricing Pricing multiples of market comparable 10% increase or decrease in the pricing multiples, the
Promissory Note model companies used to detenmine the estimated fair value would be increased by HK$7.3 million or
equity value of the Project Company: decreased by HK$7.3 million, respectively
— Price to revenue multiple LI
— Price to book multiple 20
— Price to eamings multiple 136
FEMAAREE —EATERL RAREEER AR REEENT TEEELARREE 0% RTERD IS
BUARBARNTERES M73BEBATIAL TIBEAT
-hER LI
- 20
-mak 136
Unlisted investment funds Recent transaction price ~ N/A NA  NA
FriREEE  OBRHE TR TER  TER
Financial products Recent transaction price ~ N/A NA  NA
ERER AR HE TER TER TER
Debt securities inissue ~ Recent transaction price ~ N/A NA - NA
BETEBES  THRHE TER TER TER
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32.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. ERMIANAFEFEE)
(continued)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) () HIREMIA(E)

TXREMIAR-T—RFXRA

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial

112

instruments as at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015: (continued)

As at 31 December 2015

=TRR-F-EFT=A=t-
ARENEARABERSHBE -

(&)

R-—ZE-H2f+=-A=+-H

Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Average/Range  Sensitivity of fair value to input
fhERM EXEEERSY /68 DNVEHSENSRE
Unlisted debt investments Binomial pricing model ~ Credit spread above risk-free rate 53% 2% increase or decrease in the credit spread above
the risk-free rate, the fair value would be decreased
by HK$0.5 million or increased by HK$0.5 million,
respectively
FEMEBRE  CEATERE BRERBARNHEERE 3%  BRERBANENEESEEMAREL 2%
ATEEAE DS EEATEMSEE
BT
Unlisted Convertible Binomial pricing model  Pricing multiples of market comparable 10% increase or decrease in the underlying stock
Promissory Note companies used to detenmine the estimated price, the fair value would be increased by HK$!1.0
equity value of the Project Company: million or decreased by HK$1 1.0 million, respectively.
— Price to revenue muttiple 18
— Price to book multiple 22
— Price to eamings multiple 221
FrmatkEE —BEAEERL ARETRR QA REEENT TEBH CARBEE 0% R TFERDFIE
SAALBRRANEERE MI0EEBLIRD |1 0BERT °
—ThE% 18
- ThRE 22
ks 0l
Unlisted investment funds Recent transaction price ~ N/A NA - NIA
FrnkEEe  IHRHE Tam TER  TER
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33.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

30 June 2016, unaudited

Financial assets

T 1 3 7% A R

33. RERESMERMIA
ZE-XEXAZTH REBH

THEE

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

BOVEFARSNEREE

Designated
as such
upon initial
recognition
R Loans and
Held for ~ BRKIEE receivables
trading  AEAFE EXK Total
HEEE FTARE W RIE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T TER TER
Loans and advances to customers BTEPHNERRRR — — 14,514,368 14,514,368
Accounts receivable R IR — — 2,556,940 2,556,940
Prepayments, deposits BRNFE - EERk
and other receivables H W FIR — — 168,442 168,442
Financial assets at fair value BRTEFABRNEREE
through profit or loss 2,585,260 6,166,774 — 8,752,034
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA — 65,932 — 65,932
Receivable from reverse [ 17 1 B 1hh 3k FE R 0R
repurchase agreements — — 167,210 167,210
Client trust bank balances RPERRITER — — 15147120 15,147,120
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBR2EEY — — 3,290,883 3,290,883
2,585,260 6,232,706 35,844,963 44,662,929
HZEZLXBEBRERBERAR 113
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33.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 33. REREIMNEMIAE)
30 June 2016 (continued) ZE-REXRAZTH(E)
Financial liabilities THERE

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

BAVEFABSENEREE

Designated

as such
upon initial Financial
recognition liabilities at

R amortised cost
Held for ~TERREE  HREBHEMEK

trading  ARDTE SRR Total
HEEE FABRE tHEE Bt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

FET TR TR TR

Accounts payable JERTFIE — — 16,786,349 16,786,349
Other payables and accrued liabilities L At & 5 508 | B 71 308 — — 178,316 178,316
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEFTABENEBEE

through profit or loss 2,663,760 = 2,663,760
Derivative financial instruments fTHEeMIA — 121,245 121,245
Obligations under mfEHZOEER

repurchase agreements — = 648,194 648,194
Bank borrowings RITIEK — — 10,479,278 10,479,278
Debt securities in issue BRTEKRES
— at amortised cost — R AR = — 276,470 276,470
— designated as at fair value —BERATEF AR

through profit or loss — 3,574,072 — 3,574,072

2,663,760 3,695,317 28,368,607 34,727,684
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33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

31 December 2015, audited

Financial assets

33. REFEANEMIAE)
ZE-HEE+ZA=1+-B REBEK
EPHEE

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

BRRFEFABENEREE

Designated
as such
upon initial
recognition
R Ata Loans and
Held for  HERBFIETE receivables
tradng ~ ARATE BNk Total
RIEEE ATARER e R st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TET TET TR
Loans and advances to customers RTEFPHNERRBN — — 12375857 12375857
Accounts receivable eSO IR — — 1,932,119 1,932,119
Prepayments, deposits BARE  ZER
and other receivables H it TR — — 258,782 258,782
Financial assets at fair value BATEABRNERERE
through profit or loss 1,770,124 2,856,964 — 4,627,088
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMIA — 24,952 — 24,952
Receivable from reverse 52 1) 121 8 143 o B WK R0
repurchase agreements — — 509,695 509,695
Client trust bank balances RPERRITHES — — 14662991 14662991
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkHeEED — — 2,408,666 2,408,666
1,770,124 2881916 32,148,110 36,800,150

2 AR A A
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33.

116

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

31 December 2015 (continued)

Financial liabilities

33.

Financial liabilities

REREINEMTAE)

“E-EE+ZA=1+-H(#&)

ZHEE

at fair value

through profit or loss

RAVEABENSREE

Designated
as such
upon initial Financial
recognition liabilities at
AE  amortised cost
Held for RERE  REHERA
trading ~ ABEAFE (k) Total
RIEER ATARR TRARE a5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAT TET TR TR
Accounts payable JERTFIE 18218312 18218312
Other payables and accrued liabilities L At & 5 508 | B 71 308 — — 259,942 259,942
Financial liabilities at fair value BATE ABRNeHMEE
through profit or loss 505,340 — — 505,340
Derivative financial instruments THEERmTA — 29,766 — 29766
Obligations under mfEHZOEER
repurchase agreements — — 400,517 400517
Bank borrowings RITIEK — — 7,855,662 7,855,662
Debt secunities in issue BETEEKES
—at amortised cost —REHERA — — 429,040 429,040
— designated as at fair value —EBEREATES AER
through profit or loss - 1,929,048 — 1,929,048
505,340 1958814 27,163,473 29,627,627
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